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[ CORPORATE STATEMENT |

FINNAIR'S BUSINESS
Finnair provides air travel, cargo and related services which are

competitive in terms of quality and price

VALUES
Finnair values are customer inendliness and the ¢consiant desire for mprovemsent,

honesty and openness, responsibility, fairness and a raspect for others

PROFITABILITY
Finnair's long term aim 1s steady growth in profitability This will ensure its membership

among the elite of airhnes whilst making 1t an atiractive investment

SAFETY
Safety and security are always at the forefront in Finnair s actvities ranging from technical

support and passenger and cargo handling to every aspect of flight operations

PARTNERS
Finnair 1s a competent and rehiable partner, bringing considerable added

value

STAFF
Our staff provide a high standard of service for our customers, are thoroughly

competent and professional and highly motivated

THE ENVIRONMENT
Finnar systematically analyses the environmental implications of air traffic and works

constantly to mimimize environmental effects

THE FUTURE
Finnair wants to be the best airline in Northern Europe and the most punctual and

highly respected among European airhines for sts passenger service

& FivvaIR




| FINNAIR IN FIGURES |

Finnair
highlights

Turnover by sector

Tour cperations 14 %

N\

Travel agenciss
o

o

Qther
seclors 2 %

Flight operations 7% %

Finnair group

1998/1999

FIM
Turnovar, mill, 88833
Operating profit, mill. 426 6
Operating profit of turnovar, % 48
Profit before #xtraordinary items and taxes, mil 4337
Earnings / share am
Ecuity / share 40 59
Gross capital expenditure, mill, 13086
Interast-bearing net debt, mill. 1390
Equily ratio, % 476
Nat debt-to-squity (Gearing), % 40
Return on investment, % 114
Personnel on average 11 264

1997/1998
FiM
85936
607 8
71
626 7
611
39 3%
878 6
-174 0
485

-b 4
159
10708

Change
%

34
298

-30 8

1998/1999
EUR
14941
7

729
064
683
2200
234

FIM 1 =USD 0.187
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The year

iNn brief

Finnair, one of the world's oldest airlines, becams

75 years old on November 1st 1998

In December 1988, Finnair decided to join
the worldwide oneworld™ alliance Finnair will
become a member of the allilance m September

1999

Kelo Suila toock over as new Chief Executive
QOtficer and Presideni on January 1 1999

His predecessor, Anttr Potila, retired

Finnawr's transition to using Airbus arrcraft became
apparent in Finland in February 1998, when
the first Airbus A321 aircraft began scheduled

service

A five week long strike by Finmish Civit Aviation
Administraticn air traffic controllers in February

and March 1999 caused Finnair considerable

financial losses
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For Finnair the past year has in many ways been replete
with change Aiter a good start, growth tailled off dunng
the second half and the financial year ended with a difficuls
emergency situation brought on by the strike by Civil
Aviation Administration arr traffic controllers

Finnair's profitability fell while operating costs rose
far faster than ravenues Operating costs were pushed
up by expensive collective labour agreemaents and extra
operational expenses These were caused by a major
ncrease in capacity and the switch to new Airbus aircraft
and technology, which tred up an exceptional amount of
resources for traiming

Group financial performance can be regarded as
satisfactory, but the downward trend i1s very worrying and
posses a major challenge Ouring the financial year, the
already prolonged growth in the volume of international
awr traffic continued Passenger numbers for the AEA, the
Association of European Airlines, increased in 1998 by an
average of 6 5 % Dunng its financial year Finnair exceeded
this average until the strike, which began in February 1999

The industry in general was charactenzed by a
sernous dechne in punctualty and an erosion of yield, r e
a fall iIn average revenues per passenger Combined
earnings for the AEA arrlines fell by 20 % n 1998

The globalization of the customer base and the
hberahzation and stiffening of compsetition gave added
incentive to the arrhnes to move towards closer and more
extensive cooperation Finnair chose the oneworld alkance,
one of the leading global alliances, which we joined In
December 1998

Finnair counts among the most important and

positive developments of the past year the robust demand

Report by the
Chief Executive Officer

In European and domestic trathic, the fact that it has
maintamned 1is share of the domestic market despite the
tightening competiticn, its membership of the oneworld
alliance and the initiation of the fleet renewal process which
will see the eventual withdrawal of MD-80 and DC-8 aircraft
types In favour of the Airbus A320 family of planes

The direction in many areas during the year was,
however, unsatisfactory Of most concern were the sharp
decline in profitability accompanied by nsing operational
expenses, the fall in productivity and the detenoration
in punctualty The awr trafiic controllers’ stnke seriously
raestncted traffic for aimost six weeks Countermeasures
taken during the stnke helped the company to reduce
the damage to a lower level than 1t had teared

The deterioration in air navigation services In
Europe can be seen from the AEA's punctuality figures,
which show an enormous increase In delays of about
40 % compared with 1997 For Finnair this past winter
season was unsatisfactory as far as punctuality was
concerned and the company was tipped from its previous
pride of place, although its placing for the whole year
was still a respectable third

The tour operattons and travel agency sectors showed
a posiiive trend, with growth in both sales and profitability

During the financial year the company reappraised
1ts goals and strategy, duning which it made a critical
analysis of Finnarr's staius, its strengths and the challenges
it faces We have defined our goals, We want to be
the best airline in the Northern Europe, growing proiitably
We wish to be the most punctual and respected for
providing the best service in Europs We have set out

the key strategic areas by which to achieve these goals,
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and they are
- dominance of our domestic market in Finland
- market leadership in international tratfic to and irom Fintand
and in gateway traffic passing through Finland

- strengthening of our strong market position in Stockholm
- benefiting from the synergies of allance
If we are to be successfil in the above areas we have to be
highly competitive in our production costs The sharp rnise
In gur operating costs last year sapped that competitiveness
and profitabiity at an alarming rate and in fact it 1s one of
our primary objectives in the new financial year to halt this
trend We have launched a new programme, "FinSmart”, as
an extension of the earlier "Programmae 2" with the aim of
improving profitability and competitiveness by changing our
working methods and structuras Many of the improvements
introduced so far give us encouragement in {his task

Our best resource 1s a skilled organization working
to achieve a comman goal The various employee groups
within the company have worked with the management
1o define these values on which {o base a corporate
culture for Finnair With a set of common values and
a more unified corporate culture we can work towards
improving the coopsrative abihly of the orgamization
beyend the imits A highly motivated workforce 1s
a guarantee of better service and competitiveness

The outlock for the new financral year contains many
uncertanties This s also reflected in the significant
worsening in financial performance of our competitors The
competitive chmate will remain at least as hot as 1t has to
date Russia's econoemic problems, the war in Kosovo and
political tensions in Turkey reflect directly on demand The

aboltion of tax free sales will leave a major dent in Finnair's

earnings The rise in fuel prices will raise operating costs

On the other hand we firmly believe in a positive
trend Iin our main market areas We know that we can
greatly improve efficiency through our operations We are
keeping capaciy growth moderate We are rationalizing
our route natweork by eliminating the unprofitable ones We
arg particularly emphasizing quality of service and passenger
comfort in Businass Class Our cooperation with our allance
partners wili bring concrete results during the year

Among the important events of the year, of course,
was the change of Chief Executive Officer on January 1
1999, when my predeceassor Antti Potila retired He was
CEO for the greater part of the financial year and gave me
his invaluable support when the watch changed In this
regard | want once again record my thanks to Antti Potila
for his valuabte work for the company and for his support
for me, his successor This past year has been one full of
challenge for the company’s personnel Our increased
services, sometimes to beyond our realistic resources,
demanded a considerable stretch from them Learning the
new technology was a broad-ranging challenge for a large
proportion of our staff as we began the changeover to the
new fleet The stnke at the end of the tinancial year required
daily adjustment to the cnsis situation Our staft deserves
a huge vote of thanks {or all that extra stretching

And finally our thanks to you who pay our salaries
More than sevan mitlion customers gave therr vote of confidence
to Finnair last year by choosing us for thesr transport needs
We have earned much praise in the opinion surveys, but we
are also aware of the absocluie necessity of making constant
improvements In order to contmue earn that praise i the future

Keljo Suilla
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Flying high
for the new mitllennium
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The start of the new
millennium and
the adoption of the single
European currency will
- affect us in many ways.
We at Finnair have

been prepared for these

changes for years.

We see the new millennium

as a great challenge.
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Ready for 2000
beating the bug in good time

The transition to the year 2000 1s an especally huge
challenge for a service and transpart firm which
depends on information technotogy For Finnair it 1s
a question of guaranteeing 1ts systems so that air
transport 1s safe, the comfort of passengers 1s not
impaired and the qualhty of service 1s maintained

Frnnair began i1ts Year 2000 project in 1996,
the aim being to make sure that systems, service
and the entire commoarcial operation con{inuse to run
smoothly through the change of the millennium

Finnair's 300-ocdd data systems have been
inspected Of these, more than 100 required
modification or replacement By 31 March 1999, 94
per cent of this work had been completed As far as
business operations are concerned all the critical
systems are already Y2K proof

Necessary changes of workstations and
systems testing will be carried out by 30 June 1999
Computer-linked machinary and equipment, such as
electricity, water, lifts, security and alarm systems,
wtll be tested by 30 September 1999

Trouble-free air tfransport 1s dependent on

numerous equipment and sysiems suppliers

10

The leading arrcraft manufacturers, Boeing, McDonnell
Dougtas and Airbus began preparing for the millennium
transition as far back as 1992, and they have already
carned out the necessary changes to their asrcraft

Finnair 1s involved n the project by the
international airhines association, IATA, to resolve at
a ceantral level the Y2K resilience of the world's
airports, airspace control, customs and other
services essential to the airhnes Finnish airports
and regional ihight control were checked for Y2K
protaction in April 1999

The total work input of Finnair's Year 2000
project amounts to about 25 man-years and the
overall cost of the project 1s about FIM 20 million

The Y2K problem concarns the entire
international aviation indusiry In order 10 ehminate
public uncertanty, the entire industry 1s working
together, and there 1s a free and open exchange of

information




[ THE EURO ]

The euro

At the beginning of 1999, eleven European countries,
Austria, Belgium, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland,
ltaly, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal and
Spain, formed the single currancy European Monetary
Union (EMU) This meant that they were committed
to adopting the eurgo as their common currency, to
which the currencies of the member states were tied
at a fixed rate

The transition to the guro will take place in
stages Finnar has also drawn up i1ts own timetable
by which the airtine will move over to the guro

The euro was included as ene of the Invoicing
and payment currencies at Finnair on January 1, 1999
The Finnatr Group will switch over from the Finnish
markka 10 the euro for its prnimary accounting and

internal bitling at the turn of the 2001 financial year

PRICING

From January 1, 1889, Finnair has quoted fares and
accepted paymenis in euros or in Jocal currency
according to customer choice

The transition from the markka to euro based
tanffs will take place as follows

14 ™
Freight taniffs have been expressed In euros

since April 1st 1999
N e

Air ticket tariffs witl be expressed in euros

from March 15th, 2001.

4 ™~
Charter tantfs will be expressed in euros
during the 2001/2002 winter season

~ -

Since the beginning of 1999 Finnair has i1ssued air
tickets against either euros or local currency
according to the customers’ wishes At the same
tima, the raservation system moved over to quoting
fares in both Igcal currency and euros Tickets
charged in euros can be paid for by credit card In

countries belonging to the currency union

REPORTING AND ACCOUNTS

Finnair has adopted the recommaeandations of the
Helsinki Exchange (HEX) in 1its financial reporting
The figures for the 1898/99 financtal year are also
published in euros The company will move over to
the euro in its quarterly raports 1n 1999/2000, when
the results for the hrst quarter will be published
exclusively In suros

Finnair will adopt euro denominated
accounting in selected areas of its bookkeeping even
before the company as a whole moves over to euro
accounting Onse of the first to do so will be the
technical group’s matenals handhing system, which
will use the euro from summer 1999

Shares on the HEX exchange have been
denominated in suros since January 1st 1999
Finnair will pay its dividend 1n suros for the first time
for the financial year 1999/2000, 1n other words,
m August 2000

The cost to Finnawr of moving over to the suro

15 about FIM 10 million
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Air traffic expands
competition gets tougher

Strong econcmic growth fuelled air trafhic growth
particularly in western Europe and the United States
This was also reflected in Finnair's passenger
numbers which increased by 5 per cent over the
previous year

Growth was, however, restncted by economic
preblems mainly in the Far East and Russia and also
by the five-week sirike by Finnish air traffic
controllers Without the strike, Finnair's passenger
numbers would have risen by about 7 per cent

The financial year was marked by increasing
competition both on domestic and international routes
Foreign companies have added to supply on Finnish
routes, while Finnair has developed 1ts international

route network, particularly 1ts Stockholm traffic

INTERNATIONAL SCHEDULED TRAFFIC
Intercontinental scheduled tratfic continusd to grow,
with passenger numbers increasing by an average
of 3 9 % over the previous year and the passenger
load factor increasing to 74 9 % (73 8 % in the
previous year) The primary reason was the
favourable economic climate in western countries

On the other hand the Asian economies were
unfavourable, which was reflected on all Finnair’s
Far East routes The only route on which holiday
passengers made up for the shortfall in other kinds
of travel was Helsinki-Bangkok Overall, the Atlantic
routes maintained their passenger numbers at the
previous year's level, although both the downturn in

the Russian economy and the Balkan crisis, which

Distribution of atr
traffic revenues

Passenger load Number of
factor passengers
% 1000 Passenge

a0 9000

Asla 13 % Europe 45 %

North

7000

5000

3000

1 000

94 85 96 57 S8
95 86 97 B8 89

Amesica 9 %

Leisura
tratlic 17 %

54 95 96 97 48
95 96 97 98 499 Damestic 16 %
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occasionally affected Russian travelling habits, led
to a clear decline in passenger volumes between
Russsa and the United States Finnair's share of this
travel has been about 15 per cent

European scheduled traftic grew steadily, with
passenger numbers rising by an average of 5 4 %
In particular, there was considerable growth in
passenger numbers on the Helsinkl - London, Brussels
and Stockholm routes The big new Airbus aircraft
will ease capacity problems especially on the Londen
and Brussels routes

As far as international scheduled tratfic was
concerned, the air traffic controllers’ strike affected
fights between Finland and nearby destinations the
most Of these, the flights to Tallinn were closed
completely for the duration of the sinke At the same

time a naw partnership between SAS and Maersk,

working in conjunction with Estonia Air, want hard
to work on bullding up connechions between Estonia

and the rest of the world

OUR SECOND HOME IN STOCKHOLM

Another route to suffer from the strike was Helsinki-
Stockholm On the other hand, Finnair greatly
developed its Stockholm hub, from which the airtine
flew to 16 Europsean cities, including tour in Finland
Research shows that Finnair 15 almaost as well known
tin Stockholm as SAS This high profile was enhanced
by Finnair's status as an official partner for Stockholm
In i1ts year as cultural ¢ity ¢f Europe in 1988 The
Stockholm strategy and the route network are now
being purposefully developed on the basis of the

oneworld™ alhance and the Qualflyer partnershup
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Ahead in the worid
with onmeworld

Airline passengers like to get from place to place as
affortlessly as possible, with no unnecessary waiting,
queues or detours The response of the arrlines to
this challenge 1s networking Through close coopera-
tion they are endeavouring to provide the kind of
service that enables the entirg journey, from the 1s-
suing of the ticket 10 the check-in dask and
through to the waiting piane, to flow as
smoothly as possible

Finnair, too, 1s seeking to provide
aver-better service by joining the worldwide
oneworld athance, which was set up in September
1998 by American Airrlines, British Airways, Canadian
Asrkines, Cathay Pacific and Qantas

From September 1999, Finnair passengers will
be able to take full advantage of the eneworld route

natwork, which covers 648 destinations in 140 countries

o n e &'"1'{

Finnair's own netwerk supplements 1this globaf web,

bringing an impoertant Nordic dimension to other cusio-

mers of this alliance For example, the needs of the

whole alliance will be taken into account In developing

the routes feeding through Finnarr's Stockholm hub

Membership of the alllance adds enormousty
to the benefits enjoyed by frequent flyer

programme members Finnair Plus members

i will gain points for flights on all the airhines

in the alhance, entithing them to move up
to Gold or Silver {requent flyer status In
addition, the alliance 15 expanding access to
lounge facilities all around the world Finnair will gain
considerably greater visibility and marketing resources
as a result of the partnership In the long term the
aim ts to achieve the cost benefits that come from

joint purchases and common systems development
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Finnair Plus

is growing fast

The popularity of the Finnair Plus frequent flyer
programme has increased enormously, with the
number of mambers rising by more than 25 per cent
during the financial year There are now 250,000
regular customers with Finnair Plus cards, of whom
175,000 reside 1n Finland and 75,000 beyond this
country’s borders

The dramatic growth derives from the
expansion of air traffic generally as wsll as the
prodigious effort that has gone into developing the
Finnair Plus programme Durnng the year the number
of partners I1n the programme increased by 8, so
that by the end of the financial year you could earn
Finnair Plus points on flights by 12 different airlines
You could also score points weth four hotel and threse

car hire chains Seven other partners were also

them, use them as part payment for {lights, get an
upgrade or pay for partner services with them Durning
the financial year nine new agreements for using the
points were signed

Finnair Plus rewards frequent flyers in three
levels All customers may apply for the basic Plus
card To obiain a Silver level card you need to have
earned 50,000 plus points or flown 15 return flights
with Finnair dunng the year The Geold level requires
the accumulation of 100,000 points or 35 returns Finnarr
flights during the twelve month tracking period

The frequent flyer programme witl gat a major
boost In September 1999 when Finnair joins the
oneworld alhance It will then be possibie {0 earn
points for raising your Finnamr Plus frequeant flyer

status from ali the other airlines in the allance, namely

involved American Airhines, British Airways,.Canadian Arrlines,
N 2 PR
At the same time we increased the scope for Cathay Pacific, Ibena  .~* ‘
4
X
using Plus points You can now buy free flights with and Qantas flights / -
3
19 - ’

Finnair international route destinations | . ‘
{including leisure flights) 98/99 e . {
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Domestic traffic
New services, better aircraft

Domestic passenger numbers were increasing by
13% on average prior to the air traffic controllers’
strike About 60 % of expected income was lost
during the action The fall \n passenger numbers
was slightly lower because what flights were flown
were significantly fuller than normal A total of 2 6
million passengers flew on domestic routes, an
increase of 4 1 % over the previous ysar

Services on domestic routes were greatly improved
during the year The company acquired three 66
seater ATR 72 aircraft to replace its fleet of 34 saat

Saab 340s Meals and

refreshments i
N 7
became Y 5
N s
availlable on the b .«
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fights Capacity on the most important domestic
route, between Helsinki and Oulu, was increased by
an extra return fhght and by the introduction of the
company’s first, 170 seat Airrbus A321

Passenger growth was particularly evident on
holiday flights to Lapland Much was done to improve
domestic scheduled flights, by offering new services
which were aggressively priced and specially
packaged in order 1o improve passengar figures
during the quieter periods A ticket-free travel system
1s among the new improvements, the first trials of
this MultiFLYe system being carried out on the
Helsinki-Oulu route

Competition on domestic routes changed in
January 1998 when SAS bought Air Botma, which
operates low volume domestic routes Before the
takeover, Air Botnia's market share of Finnish tratfic
was 3 7 per cent and remamned below 4 per cant at
the end of Finnair's financial year The new situation

has not led to domestic price competition

Finnair domestic route destinations 98/99

ENONTEKIO KEMUTORNIO MAREHAMN TURKY
HELSINKI KITTILA ouw VAASA
IVALD KOKKOLA/PIETARSAARI PORI VARKAUS
JOENSUU KUario ROVANIEMI

JYVASKYLA KUUSAMO SAVONLINNA

KAJAANI LAPPEENRANTA TAMPERE
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During the year the European Union drew attention
to airport fees and proposed that fees for domestic
traffic be raised to the same leve! as for overseas
thights At present, airport charges for domestic
routes are about 80 per cent cheaper than for
overseas flights The increases pose a threat to the
wviability of certain routes Other cost pressures during
the year have already resulted in price rises for

domestic flights of almost 10 per cent

TIMETABLES BY MOBILE PHONE

In terms of mobile phone use and Internet connec-
tians, Fintand 1s a world leader, so 1t 1s natural that
Finnair too, should try 10 make as effective use of
the new technology as possible

During the last financial year Finnair became
the first arrline I1n the world to introduce a service
allowing customers to receive text messages on their
mobile phones, teling them not just the fight time-
tables but the actual departure and arrival times
Finnair Plus customers can also check their latest
points tally as well as getting the latest Plus offers
by mobile phone

For timetable information, customers use the
relevant international codes to tap In the name of

the airport and arrline plus the date The message

1S passed on to our timetable service where the
query 18 processed and the information sent back
as a text message The service also works abroad,
as long as the local telecom opearator provides text

messaging

TICKET-FREE FLIGHTS BY INTERNET

During the last financial year, Finnair also moved its
ticket-free flight system onto the Internet MultiFLYe
18 a system designed for business, which provides
electronic season tickets for travel between two
destinations in Finland Now it 1s possible to handle
your own seat reservations and cancellations from
your own computer terminal via the Internet

Instead of getting a ticket the customer s
given a credit card sized MultiFLYe card with a per-
sonal number This even allows them to ¢check in at
the departure gate as long as they are only carrying
hand luggage The card provides access to the book-
Ing system and also allows customers to check their
card account information in real time

Finnair believes 1t 1s important to develop s
mobile phone and Internet services, which 1s why it
Is upgrading i1ts seat reservation system to enable
passengers to book their flights by text message

over their mobile telephones
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Quality and the environment
-priorities for catering
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CATERING
Finnair Catering 1s a profit centre within the company
and 1s concernad with catering and tax free sales
Its sales during the last financial year reached FiIM
813 mudlion, of which catering accounted for FIM 448
million and tax free sales FIM 3685 milhon Sales
increased by 7 per cent over the previous year
The Catening unit 1s responsible for the planning,
proviston and constant improvement of in-fight meals
services and supphes During
the financial year, Finnair
increased the number of weekly
menus on its international
flights from three to four The
choice of meals on northern
Finnish domestic fights was also increased Finnarr
service earned international praise during the year, when
readers of Business Traveller magazine voted our white
wine as the best being served by any airling in the world
Sorting and recycling of waste are among the
most difficult environmaental challenges facing
arrline catering departments Finnair's extensive
efforts in this direction included increasing the
number of stati in the sorting department
In addition to Finnair s own flights the Catering unit
handles catering services for 16 other airhnes flying
imnto Helsinki There are no other companies n

Helsinki providing aircraft catenng services

TAX FREE

Finnair sells tax free products at nine arrperts in Finland
and on international thghts apart from the shorter
routes near Finland Half of sales are generaied by
the shops and haff on board the aircraft

As a result of the pre-ordering service, in-flight
sales expanded considerably during the financial
year Passengers may now order therr tax free
purchases in advance on all holiday flights and most
scheduled routes They pay for their purchases by
credit card and find their shopping bag ready and
waiting for them in their seat on their return fhight
As much as a fifth of Finnair's tax free sales are now
ordered in advance The system 1s being gradually
phased in on all Finnair overseas flights

The European Union will to abolish tax free
sales throughout the community Iin & decision that will
reduce Finnair's profit by an estimated FiM 80 million

and lower sales by more than FIM 200 million a year
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Clear growth

iNn leisure flights

In addition to its scheduled route fleet, Finnair atsc
has aircraft dedicated only to leisure traftic Finnair's
igisure flights department 1s responsible for selling
capacity on these aircraft

Clients of the leisure flights department are
the Finmish package tour organizers, who annuaily
buy up almost the entire avallable aircraft capacity
At the same time the risk of selling seais 1s taken
on by the tour operators

Aar tratfic revenue for Finnair letsure flights
has increased strongly in recent ysars During the
past financial year 1t increased by 12 per cent o
FiM 1 2 tilhon

The brggest clhients of the leisure flights
department are the Finnair subsidiaries Suntours
and Finntours, who together account for about
two thirds of the depariment’s entire sales These
operators ily exclusively with Finnair planes Also
clients of the leisure flights department are
Frittdsresor and Hassen Matkat, which are part of
the Thomson group, and Tjareborg and Spies, which
belong to the Airiours group

Leisure tiights operated four Boeing 757s and
two MD-83 arrcraft during the financral year in addition,
an MD-80 1s used for leisure flights at weekends
A further two MD-11s are used for winter traific The
company receved (ts fifth Boeing 757 1n Aprnl 1999

During the past financial year, Finnarr flew
750,000 passengers to overseas destinations The

most popular places in winter are the Canary [slands,
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1o which 32 flights a week were flown during the
height of the seascn The level of utilization of the
Boeing 757 aircraft was exceptionally high During
the financial year the aircraft flew an average of
almost 14 hours a day, exceaeding 16 hours a day
during the winter season

Finnair leisure thghts run to a total of 80
desuinations, with iraffic being split between charier
fhghts and scheduled leisure flights You can buy
individual tickets for the laiter from any travel agency
through the normal seat reservation system Scheduled
leisure thghts began five years ago when the European
Union abeolished the restrictions on atr trafiic Duning
the past financial year the volume of scheduled leisure
fights reached the level of charter fhghts

With Finnair switching its leisure flights from
the wide-bodied planes to the smaller Boging 757,
Its aircraft were obliged to make reiuelling stops on
the long-haul routes This made 1t possible to create
new roules since 1t 18 possible to fly to more
destinattons from the interim atrports This makes
for considerable savings In crew ¢osts and makes
route operations more flexible

Finnair arrcraft have accounted for about 90
per cent of Finmsh leisure thghts 1n recent years
When British firms Thomson and Awrtours start flying
from Finland to Spain duning the winter season,
Finnair's market share will fall to 70 - 75 per cent
This will allow us to transfer the MD-80 aircraft used

for leisure traffic to scheduled routes
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Package tours
iNncreasing in popularity

Finnair subsidianes Suntours and Finntours organize
package tours from Finland to the traditional beach
holiday resorts of the Mediterrangan and the Canary
Islands They also arrange trips further afield as wsll
as to many of the major European cities and the ski
resorts of the Alps During the last inancial year
they flew almost 450,000 passengers to about 200
destinations around the world

Suntours, Finntours and Top Club operate
under the Finnair Travel Services Oy {FTS) company
Top Club provides mainly individual ¢y holidays
These companies have a combined share of about
50 per cent of the Finnish package tour market
Almost all of the flights arranged by FTS are flown
by Finnair planes

Turnover for package tours has risen steadily
in Finland n recent years The strong economy has
favoured holiday travel However, the trend was
broken last year, when the total number of
passengers dechned by about 2 per cent This came

Tour production by country

Summer 1998

{(Suntours and Finntours)

Others 14 %

AN

Poriupal
6%

Grogce 35 %

ltaty 10 %

Spaln
%

Turkey 14 %
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about from a surplus of supply In the industry which
culminated in the bankruptcy of one travel operator

Passenger numbars for FTS grew during the
1998/99 tinancial year by about 7 per cent, while
combined sales for FTS increased during the same
period by 14 per cant to almost FIM 1 5 billion
Profitability rose shghtly from the year before

More than 35 per cent of package tours from
Fintand each year are destined for Spain Greece
accounts for about 15 per cent while other places
take less than 10 per cent each Dunng the winter
season the Canary Islands are the choice of more
than 50 per cent of all passengers

Competition in the package tour market has
stiffened In recent ysars Bnitish travel operators
Airtours (Tjareborg and Spies) and Thomson
(Fritidsresor and Hassen Matkat) have each placed
an aircraft in Helsinkr to fly holhidaymakers out to
southern destinations This has also led to increased
competition on fares

Tour production by country
Winter 1998/99

{Suntours and Finntours)

{Others 14 %

Spain 62 %

Middle East
8%
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Finnair's travel service subsidianes appear in the
marketplace under theirr own names and with different
profiles Suntours s Finland's biggest travel operator
with about 32 per cent of the market It is a
traditional “southern tours” arranger and has
expanded faster than Finnair’s package tour
companies Finntours s profiled as a slightly younger
tour operator and has a market share of 17 % Top
Club, which organizes individual city hohdays is
considerably smaller than Suntours or Finntours,
whtch concentrate on traditional holiday destinations
FTS 1s constantly improving its own net-based

information and reaservation systems The Internet

home pages of these companies currently provide
sources of information about therr services The next
step will be to enable custiomers to book and pay
for thetr trips via the Internet

FTS travsel operators employ 180 psople In
Finland and about 250 more abroad Suntours has
5 sales offices n Finland, Finntours has 3 and Top
Club 1 FTS sells more than 40 per cent of its package
trips through 1ts own outlets, Finnair's Area and
Finland Travel Bureau travel agencies sell shghtly
more than 20 per cent and other travel agancies sell
Jjust under 40 per cent During the last financial year

FTS fiights were filled to 98 per cent capacity
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Travel

agencies

iNn transition

Finnair's travel agencies are an important distnbution
channel for the group and a point of contact for the
changing travel needs of our passengers The market
sharg in Finland for Finnair subsidiaries Finland Travel
Bureau Ltd and Area Travel Agency Ltd s about
45 per cent, while the group also has a number of
smaller agencies around Finland as well as the
Norvisia chain of agencies operating abroad

The combined sales for Finnair travel agencies
increased last year by 7 per cent Finland Fravael
Bureau increased by 9 per cent and Area Trave!
Agency by 7 per cent Finland Travs| Bureau 1s
Finland’s biggest travel agency, with a market share
of about 25 per cent of the market

Combined net sales for iravel agencies in
Finland during 1998 amounted to about FIM 8 bilhon,
which was shightly less than 10 per cent more than
for the year before The ten biggest trave! agencies
account for about 80 per cent of the industry’s sales,
white the remaining fifth ts shared among some 300
travel agencies

A strike by air traffic controllers in February 1999
ate a constderabla portion of travel agency growth
during the financial year Without 1t the industry estimates
that growth would have been about 12 per cent

Finland Travel Bureau and Area Travel Agency
are full service travel agencies although they tend
towards business travel, whare they have a market
share of about 50 per cent They account for about
40 per cent of tailor-made travel and about the same

proportion of the holiday travel agency busingss

Finland Travel Bureau and Area Travel Agency handle
about 50 per cant of Finnair's air ticket sales in
Finland, while Finnair fights account for about 40
per cent of Group s total travel agency sales

Finland Travel Bureau 15 also Finland's largest
Incoming travel agency Anncreasing share of
incoming chents are foreign companies which
organize incentive trips and which expect fully
comprehensive travel service packages from their
travel agencies Foreign guests invited by Finnish
firms are also increasingly keeping the incoming
travel agencies occupied

During the financial year Area Travel Agency
and Finland Travel Bureau invested in the new ACE
operational control system, aimed at improving both
customer service and iabour productivity Both travel
agencies will adopt the system in June 1989 The
cost of the upgrade programme will be sevaral mijlicn
Finmish markka, wiich includes renewal of almost
500 workstations

There were no fundamentat changes in the
compeirtive chmaie in Finland dunng the year The
merger of Travek wiith MatkaKaleva created a travel
agency to compete with Area Travel Agency for the
position of the second biggest in the country

As with the arriines, travel agencies too have
been bullding world-wide aliances Both Finland Trave!
Bureau and Area Travel Agency belong to the Amernican
Express Travel Service chain Three other important
chaing, BTI, Rosenblut and Carlson Wagon Lits arg also

represented in Finland thraugh iocal travel agencies




[ TRAVEL AGENCY SECTOQR ]

CHALLENGES FOR THE FUTURE
There are three important challenges facing the future
of Finnair's travel agencies Consumer needs and
expectations are becoming increasingly ndividual,
with rising demand for tallored tours that include an
added range of services to suit customer
requiremeants All age groups are seeking more
personal services, from sperting young people to
pensioners seeking cultural experiences

Secondly, the rapid advance of information
technology s making more flexible and
comprehensive services possible The travel seller
1s gradually becoming the travel industry consultant
The role of the computer has changed from that of
office tool to programmed data bank The sale of
travel through the Internet 1s a challenge which the
agencies are combating by supplying an increasing
array ol expert services

Thirdly, the decline 1n sales commissions has
to be made up for by greater efficiency On the other
hand, the travel agency must provide chients with
the kind of addsd value for which they are prepared

to pay an extra service charge

AMADEUS

Finnair owns 95 per cent of Amadeus Finland Oy, the
Finmsh subsidiary of the world's largest travel
reservation system Amadeus Finland Oy markets
travel information and distributton systems 1n addition
It provides training and various kinds of support for
producers and users of travel services The majority

of Finrush travel agencies use the Amadeus system

Amadeus Finland Oy denves its income from terminal
rentals and reservation fees Amadeus has cutl back
considerably on actual sales of equipment to travel
agencias since this 1s not 1n keeping with its business
philosophy

Amadeus Finland Oy's turnover during the
financial year amounted to FIM 67 7 millvon, which

was about the same level as the yesar before
NORVISTA

Norvista 1s a chain of Finnair travel agencies and
tour organizers operating abread [ts aim s to sel
Finland as a travel destination, by way of Finnair
flights, to foreign customers The Norvista chain
consists of 10 subsidianeas, of which two are in North
America and the rest in Europe It has 13 offices

Sales by the Norvista chamn for the financial
year reached aboui FIM 320 million, representing an
Increase over the previous year of about one per
cent The air traffic conirollers’ strike slowed growih
considerably There are about 200 people employed
by Norvista companies

Leisure travel to Finland is clearly on the
increase and Norvista believaes that charter trave!
to Finland will continue 1o grow strongly, particularly
with Finland's presidency of the EU beginning in
the summer of 1989 Between 3,000 and 4,000
Jjournalists and about 20,000 conference delegates
are expected to arrive in this couniry during Its
presidency, to whom the agencies will be ofiering

leisure opportunities here
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New air cargo terminal
is biggest in the Nordic countries

Finnair Cargo hauls two thirds of Finland’s inter-
national air cargo and approximately 7% of Finnair s
air transport revenues

Economic problems in Asia and Russia had a
negative effect on Finnair Cargo operations On the
other hand, the strong US dollar led to dramatically
increased demand on the North Atlantic routes as
European firms increasingly direcied their sales
towards the United States Because of this, Finnair
Cargo cancelled its cargo route to Singapore and
transterred the cargo arrcraft for its Finland - USA
routes The other target area (s China, where cargo
volumes have increased significantly

In Europe, Finnair carge aircraft fly four times
a week to London and three times to Germany
Finnair Cargo makes deliberate use of Helsinki-
Vantaa airport's Gateway concept for 1is operations

Air cargo actually spends only 20 per cent of
Its time 1n the air and about 80 per cent on the
ground, which 1s why, in the early 1880s, Finnair
began developing 11s cargo logistics and at the same
time decided to construct an extensive and eflicient
cargo centre at Helsinki-Vantaa airport The final
phase of ithis expanston work came Into service
in April 1998 With a total surface area of 36,000
square metres the terminal 1s now the largest of iis
kind 1n the Nordic countries it 1s open 24 hours
a day, every day of the year, providing cargo Services

and customs facHities 1n the same premises
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Finnair Cargo’s ground services include a road feader
to Russia The company operates 18 regular runs a
week from Helsinki-Vantaa airport to St Petersburg
and Moscow The reasons for using road feeders
include the scarcity of suitable aircraft, difficulties
in obtaining flight permits, and flexibility and security
Finnarr has four cargo aircraft on lease, one
Airbus A300, two Boeing 727s and a Boeing 747
Cargo 15 also carried on all the airline's regular flights
The move over to Airbus A320s brought considerable
benefits Only containers are used on the new planes,
which censiderably speeds up lcading and ofi-loading
During the financial year Finnair Cargo also
worked to create a net based service concept,
introducing an Internet booking system for express
cargo services, for example Customers can also
use the Internet to follow the progress of their cargo

in real time

Cargo and mail
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90 000

70 00D
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30 000
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Passenger comfort
key words in fleet policy

A319 A321
120 seats 153 seats 178 seats
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PpC-9-51 MD-82, MiD-83
122 seats 140-156 seats
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{ FLEET AND MAINTENANCE )

Finnair's latest
aircraft and brand new
business class
seats provide the spacious
comfort of your

own sofa.

B757-200
219 seats

T —

ATR 72
66 seats
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THE FLEET

The biggest fleet upgrade programme in Finnar's
history became apparent for the first time in February
1999 when tha first Airbus A321 went into service
Finnair has signed a contract to buy a total of 12
aircraft of the new Airbus A320 family aircraft, with
an option to take an additional 24 aircrait Finnair
will take delivery of the first four on firm order In
1999, with four more arriving 1In 2000 and a further
four joiming us by autumn 2001

Eventually Airbus aircraft will replace the entire
fleet of 37 DC-9s and MD-80s which we were
cperating when the upgrade programme began
The effect of this programme will be to reduce the
average age of our aircraft over the next three years
to below 10 years The first two Arrbuses werg
purchased for cash, and they are worth more than

FIM 300 mithon sach

CAPACITY INCREASING

We had three objectives in ¢choosing these aircraft,
modermizing the fleet, reducing the number of types
In service and increasing capacity

The new generation Airbuses are more environ-

mentally friendly and provide for greater passenger
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comfort than the earlier generation of DC-9s and
MD-80 series of planes The Airbuses are more
spacious both for the passengers and thewr luggage

Passenger comfort 1s in a class of 1ts own on
Alirbus A320 series aircrafts There 15 considerably
more space in the cabin, particularty for hand
luggage Video displays keep passengers eniertained
and intformed A special innovation 15 the panoramic
camera, which relays images from outside the plane
Cabun service has also been improved by introducing
mora but half-sized service trolleys

We shall be reducing type diversity by replacing
the DC-9s and MD-80s with one new type As for
turboprop aircraft, Finnawr will discontinue 1ts Saab SF
340s and replace them with three ATR 72s, of which we
previously had six As a result of these measures we shall
reduce the range of types in our fleet from seven to five
This reduction will bring savings n the use of crews and
In training, iesting, maintenance and spare parts

Upgrading the fleet means gradually increasing
the number of seats we have to offer The 178 seat
Arrbus A321s will provide about 20 per cent more
capacity than the largest of the MD-B0s, and thay
will go into service on the most crowded of our

European and domestic routes
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Customer service 1s constantly enhanced n all fleet
During 1999 Finnair will rewamp service concept on
Its wide-body airgraft used on long-haul routes The
changes, which will substantially \ncrease service
and passenger comfort, will gradually be wntroduced
to other aircraft, too

At the end of the financial year Finnair had 47
|et aircraft in service, of which the company owned
31 while 16 were teased Finnair owns 8 of its
ATR 72 turboprop aircraft and leases one [n addition,
Finnair owns two Airbus A300-84s which are leased
out to Great Britain Finnair 18 responsible for
sarvicing and technical support during the penod of

the contract

SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE

Finnair's service and maintenance (dea 1s to know
the aircraft operated as thoroughly as possible
Finnair 1s able to carry out all the normal servicing

and maintenance i1 requires for its flest

Fleet used by Finnair in 1ts own traffic,
June 1999

(_ T - F-rr'mnz':lal' —OFe-r;ilng_ h Averaaﬁ
Number Owned leasing leasing agn

AIRCRAFT
A321 211 — 2 2 04 ——J
8757-200 5 5 12 —-]
MD-11 Il--v 4 4 6,9
MD B2/83 22 10 2 10 10,6
M0 87 — 3 3 1ni—
DC 951 10 10 20 9'——1
ATR 72 — 9 8 1 8BS ]
TOTAL 56 a7 3 15 10,7-—J
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During the financial year the company
continued the modification of the Flight Management
System for 1is fleet of MD-80s The last atrcraft was
upgraded in Aprit 1999 and now the entire flest 1s
equipped with a system capable of taking on the
demands of the 21st century In all, the work
consisted of modifying 24 aircraft over a period of
two and a half years

Besides its own aircraft, Finnair maintaineg
planes, engines and components for more than hundred
customers duning the tinancial year The most important
maintenance contract last year was signed with
Lufthansa Cargo for its MD-11 freighter arrcraft

In addition to 1ts |at aircraft fleet, Finnair
performs mamtenance for a dozen or more types of
turboprop aircraft operating 1n Finland

The total budget tor servicing and maintenance
In the last financial year was FIM 1 3 billion, ot which
ouiside invoicing accounted {for FIM 300 mtllion

Finnarr employs about 2,350 technical staff
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Staff development
for supreme quality

The success of every flight 1s the outcome of the
rellable and seamless teamwork that unites dozens
of professionals Indeed, the characteristic that con-
nects every member of Finnair's staff 1s protessiona-
lism and the commitment to absolute, rehable gquahty

Finnair guahty means safety, punctuahty and
excellent customer service Qualty assurance, cons-
tant gauging of the reliability of the operational chain
coupled with genutnely customer-friendly tmprove-
menis in service and a user-frendly customer service
1itself, form the main thrust of our quahty policy, by
which Finnair can ensure competitiveness in these
areas And the fulfilment of that common quaiity pahcy
depends on the support of our staff policy

Finnair defined 1ts personnel strategy at the
beginning of 1889 1n a joint undertaking involving
the company’s management and various organizatio-
nal fevels and staff bodies The strategy lays out
the general guidelines for staff improvements and
covers personnel planning, staff procurement, main-
tenance of prefessional skills and working capabilitres,

competence development work incentives and remu-
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nerations, management and supervisory working
practices, and matters relating to cooperation

In 1998 the company began an extensive pro-
cess of charting out its system of values These wers
summarised under the themes of customer-
friendliness, constant improvement, honesty, open-
ness, a sense of responsibihity, fairness and respect
for others A large group of representatives freom
various staff bodies was involved in this process
The process of implanting these values into the
organization started at the beginning of 1999, with
the entire staff of the company taking part in the
programme The purpose of the value process 1s to
develop Finnair's corporate culiure so that 1t supports
as well as possible the attainment of 1its operational
goals and creates a positive working atmesphere

Internal communications made a dramatic leap
forward with the extensive improvements to the

company’s internal intranet system during

Group personnel
on average

Persons

10 000

& 000

4000

2000

94 85 96 97 98
95 5 97 93 99
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the financial year The information necessary for
various tasks 1s becoming increasingly available via
the intranet, whilst all offices now have access to
up-to-date communications Employees can read
the staff handbook, obtain information on internal
servicaes provided by the health centre or how to
order communications equipment as easily as they
can find out about operational instructions for various
departments, either from their own workstations or
at the common net access points

Finnair’s corporate image n Finland I1s strong
as an employer too The company was proctaimed
by students in 1998 as the most sought after work
place 1n Finland And team spirit was considerably
strengthened during the year when the entire staft
tcok part in the Finnair 75th anniversary celebrations
and the company's commemorative volume was also

published
STAFF STRUCTURE

The parent company employed 9,038 persons during

the 1998/99 financial year, of whom 8 per cent were

on temporary contracts and 2 per cent were part-
itme workers 43 par cant were women and 57 per

cant werg men

TRAINING

Finnair's aviation activities and smooth cusiomer
services require the special competence of numerous
protessions Fmnnair Training Center 1s a special insti-
tution owned by the company which trains professio-
nal pilots, supervisars and other staff Finnar trarning
also covers technical personnel, marketing and cabin
service and the college also provides type-training
for pilolts During the last financial year, the traiming
hours amounted to about 457,400 {358 500)

Finnair has suffered in the past couple of years
from a shortage of pilots, which traces i1ts roots back
to the dramatic drop In passenger numbers during
the early 1990s, which in turn led to cutbacks In
pilot training Professional pilot training capacity
was increased during the tinancial year and now 40

professional pilots a year are qualifying at the Finnair

professional fhight traiming center in Pori
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Easing the burden,
our choices for helping the environment

burden‘ @ﬁ he':aenwronment

and avuatlnlsmo-exceptlon.
We at Finnair have

systematically analyzed

these burdens and

made constant efforts to

minimize them.
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Finnair set up 1ts environmental organization in 1991
E\ io monitor Finnair's effects on the environment and
develop ways to reduce their impact At the same
time the organization ensures that Finnair operates
according to the environmental principles of the
International Airline Transport Association, IATA, the
environmental regulations i1ssued by ICAQ, the Inter-
national Civil Airines Crganization, as well as local

regulations

INVESTING IN NEW FLIGHT EQUIPMENT

Our primary concern in choosing the engings for cur
new Airbus aircraft was to minimize noise, emissichs

and fuet consumption Airbus aircraft consume on

average, 20 % less fuel and correspondingly cause
20 % less carbon dioxide emissions than similar
sized MD-80 awrcraft Nitrogen emissions are also

considerably lower than those from MD-80s
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Stressing environmental needs, we opied for engines
with double annular combustion chambers, which,
although more expensive In terms of maintenance
and fuel costs, 15 Jjustified as far as environmental
burden is concerned
One of the most significant environmental

Investment decisions taken during the last financial
year involved fitbing ‘hush kit” engine noise reducing
equipment to the DC-9 -50 aircraft This will bring
the noise level of these aircraft down to meset new
notse requirements effective from 2001 The upgrade
also reduces noise Inside the rear of the passenger
cabin The first installation took place during the
financial year and the entire project, covering ten
arrcraft, will be completed by the late spring of 2000

This will cost a total of FIM 100 million

BETTER RECYCLING FOR CATERING

Another important area for environmental
improvement 1$ Finnair's Catering division, which
gained the readinass for ISQ 14001 envircnmental
certification during the year

We have been abie to reduce the amount of
unsorted waste dunng the financial year by
separating 1t more carefully and recyclhng 1t more
thoroughly The aim 1s to cut the amount of unsorted
waste by a further 30 per cent and lower the amount
of waste water by 10 per cent by 2001 At the same
time we are moving towards more environmentally
friendly packaging and tableware

The renewal of the aircraft tieet also helps us

to achieve cur envircnmental geoals for unsorted

waste, because the Boeing 757s are equipped with
highly advanced waste sorting and compressing

equipment, as do the new Airbus A320 family aircraft

TAKING CARE OF WASTE WATER

The 1998/1999 winter was especially severs in
Finland so a lot of de-icing fluid was used This led
to a slight increase tn the waste watsr burden
Other environmental burden came from catering
processes, arrcraft lavatones and arcraft maintenance
We endeavoured to reduce the overall
environmental effects of our catering service and
maintenance activities in 1998 by favouring water-based
processes over the use of solvenis Finnair also pays
sirict attention to the waste water effluents from its
repair shops by cleaning them in three treatment plants
The water authonty granted Finnair a permission
during the financial year to continue to conduct
cadmium-containing waier from 1{s plating plant into
the sewer, subject to the conditions set out In the
parmit Finnair accounts {or a few per cent of the
cadmium burden in the Hslsinki municipat waste

water treatment plant

THE MOST IMPORTANT ENVIRONMENTAL
CHALLENGES FACING AVIATION ARE

e aircrafi engine emissions

* aircraft noise

» volatile organic compound smissions to the atmosphere
* wastie water discharges at arrportis

* caternng waste

* aircraft engine fual consumption

* anergy consumpiion by facihties
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Financial statements April 1, 1928 to March 31, 1999

Report by the Board of Directors
Despite some exceptional disturbances in our operating
environment, the objectives for the financial ysar were
achieved and, in the circumstances, the results can
be regarded as satisfactory

The financial result from flight operations
weakened from the preceding year Cther Group
operations, however, saw improved results

The trend towards groupings of airlings nto
alhances continued amid competition among the
airlines Finnair has signed up as a member of the
oneworid aliiance founded by five of the world’s leading
arhnes and has also forged a number of other
cooperation agreements with other airlines
Competition in Finnush air transport has stiffened
A foreign owned airline has increased 1ts supply and
expanded its operations in Finland, without significantly
increasing its market share, however Finnair has
benefited from the new opportunities ushered in by
the liberalization of air transport and has also
strenghtened its international posiion by expanding
its traffic and raising its market share outside Finland

Travel industry growth in Finland was weakened
partly by a strke by Finmish Civil Aviation Administration
air traffic controllers in February and March of 1999
and partly by econcmic difficulties in Far Eastern and
Russian markets These factors reflected in particular
on sales of domestic and Far Eastern travel

The growth in tratfic demand continues into the
current 1899/2000 financial year Underiying this are
the expectations of continued growth in the Finnish
economy and consumer demand and a gradual
recovery In the Asian economigs Accelerating price
and market-share competition between the airhnes
and alliances 1s also contributing to traffic growth
Profitability trends are increasingly dependent on cost-

Revenue tonne

kilometres Turnover

effectiveness The company 1s continuing the etficiency
and structural change programme that 1t began in
previous years in order to improve productivity

Ailr traffic performance trends and

market situation

The number of passenger kilometres flown as
scheduled tratfic by members of the AEA (Association
of European Airlines) increased during calendar year
1998 by an average of 9 % over the previous year
The number of cargo tonne kilometres flown fell by 1 %
The average load tactor for passenger transport fell
by 0 4 percentage points to 71 B per cent

The growth in Finnush air traffic slowed during
the financial year compared to the year before
Passenger numbers for all Finnair Group traftic rose
by 5 % Growth in the previous year had been 13 %
The combined volume for carge and mail fell by 5 %
from the previous year, when it still grew by 15 %
Revenue passenger kilometres increased by 5 %

The revenue cargo tonne kilometres fall by 11 %
The passenger load factor improved by 1 1 percentage
points over the previous year to 72 3 %

The air traffic controllers’ labour dispute began
on February 1, 1999 and lasted for more than five
weeks Traffic was completely restored to timetable
about a week after the end of the actual stnke During
the dispute, about 80 % of of international scheduled
flights were fiown, while leisure traffic was almost
completely unaffecied, but as far as domestic traffic
was concerned, only a few northern Finrush routes
were flown During the dispute, passenger numbers
for all traffic for February were 25 % down on the
previocus year and 11 % tower in March The drop 1n
passenger numbers was felt mamnly on domestic traffic,
which fell by B0 % In February and 23 % in March from
the year before 11 1s estimated that without the strike,

Operating profit
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passenger numbers and passengser kilometres flown
by all traffic would have nsen by more than 7 %

Finnair’'s market share of Finmish international
scheduled passenger traffic fell during the summer
season of 1988 by 3 percentage points from the
previous year, 1o 57 % Market share for the 1998/99
winter season remained at the previous year's level of
57 % Finnair has correspondingly increased its supply
and market share abroad

The 1998 summer season fall iIn market share
occurred in European traftic, which fell by 3 percentage
points 10 53 %, but market share of winter traffic in
1998/99 rose by 1 percentage pont from the previous
year to 55 % Fmnnair has a large market share of long-
haul traffic, which includes North Atlantic and Far
Eastern regions Market share durning the summer 1998
traffic season rose by 1 percentage point to 93 %
During the winter traffic season 1t fell by just under 1
per cent to 92 % Finnair still mamtains a formidable
market share of domestic traffic, with 95 % Some
fights on short and low density domestic routes are
flown by subcontractors on Finnair's behalf These
flights have been undertaken by the Swedish companies
Flying Enterprise AB and Golden Air Fiyg AB

In leisure traffic, which includes charter flights
and scheduled so-cailed holiday routes, market share
rose considerably during the 1988 summer season,
by 5 per centage points to 81 % Duning the winter
season, market share remamned almost unchanged
from the year before, at B2 %

Financial results

Turnover for the financial year amounted to FIM 8,883 3
million Turnover for the corresponding penod the year
before was FIM 8,583 6 million Turnover increased by
3 4 %, whereas the increase for the previous year was
8 8 % Operating costs rose by 5 6§, compared with

Profit before extra-
ordinary items and taxes

Capital expenditure

6 2 % the previous year Operating profit was FIM
426 6 milhon, having been FIM 607 8 milhion the year
before Profit for the financial year was FIM 342 3
mithon, whereas the previous year it had been FIM
508 7 million

Other revenue from business operations
amounted to FIM 145 9 milion This included gains of
FIM 70 1 mithon from the sals of flight equipment and
FiM 33 7 milhon from the sale of shares in the company
called Sita Telecommunications Holding N V Extra-
crdinary items incluged FIM 20 millon in compensation
for contractual changes relating to an earlier subsidiary
company sale In the previous year, other revenue from
business operations amounted to FIM 168 3 million,
which included FiM 142 3 million in profit from the sale
of fhight squipment

Air transport revenues per tonne kilometre rose
0 4 % while operating costs per avallable tonne kilometre
rose 1 0 % from the previous year

The most important operating expenses to affect
revenues were Group personnel costs, which rose
by 8 5 % and FIM 203 3 million from the year before
Staff costs accounted for 30 1 % of operating costs,
compared with 29 3 % the previous year Leasing
charges for aircraft rose by 51 % and FIM 103 mlllion
because of sale and leaseback arrangements
implemented at the end of the previous financial year
and during the past financial year The purpose of this
procedure was to strengthen the company’s cash flow
and to finance purchases of new aircraft, as well as
ensuring at an early stage the sale of technologically
older aircraft On the other hand, fuel cosis felt by 19
% and FIM 132 7 mifion During the review period the
price of |et fuel in Finnish markka was 12 % cheaper
on average than In the preceding year The price of
fuel 1s tied to the US dollar exchange rate, which was
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on average 0 8 % lower in relation to the Finmsh
markka than during the previous year

The labour dispute by Finrush Civil Aviation
Admimistration air traffic controllers 1s estimated to
have cost about FIM 110-120 milhon in lost revenues
and an eventual loss of profits of FIM 45-50 milhon
Because of struciural and operational adjustments to
flights which were initiateg during the dispute, the
fingnciat losses remained lower than initially estimated,
but they were nevertheless considerable

A project called Programme 2 for improving the
financial performance of fight operations was begun
1in 1987 The aim of this is to implement over a three
year period the operational and structural measures
needed to increase earnings, reduce costs, make more
efficient use of capacity and improve customesr service
so as to achieve a FIM 500 million improvement In
results The programme has progressed according to
plan and the goals set for the structural measuras
during the financial year were achieved

Development of group sectors

Turnover for flight operations increased by 2 3 % but
operating profit fell by 34 4 % from the year before
Turnover for other Group sectors grew significantly
more than for fight operations and flnancial
performance improved

In the circumstances, the financial performance
of the travel agency sector can be regarded as
favourable Turnover Increased by 9 8 % and cperating
profit 32 4 % Durlng the financial year a significant
change occurred in travel agency finances and the
pricing of services when the airlines lowered the sales
commission they pay to travel agencies Some of the
loss of income has been transterred directly for the
customer, who uses the services, to pay The declne
In sales commissions will 1n future require the travel

Net financing

agencies 1o make constant efforts to improve sfhciency
Rapid advances in information technolegy are creating
new, compeiing distribution channets, and the travel
agencies will be forced to adjust their operations to
changing circumstances in order to be able to exploit
these

Turnover on tour operations increased by 14 2 %
and operating profit increased considerably from the
previous year Competition in the package tour market
1s changing The industry is currently in the throes of
structural change and concentration Some foreign
tour operators have introduced their own transport
capacity onto the Finnish market, which has already
increased price competitton Thus a fundamental
improvement in competitiveness in leisure traffic will
be necessary If the Group 1s to maintan tts market
share of flight operations

Important companies belonging to the other
sector are Finnair Gateway Restaurant Oy, Amadeus
Finland Oy and Finncatering Oy Combined turnover
increased by 10 1 % and operating profit Improved by
23 3 % from the previous year

Capital expenditure

A major programme to integrata and renew the aircraft
fleet was set in motion during the financial year The
result of this investment programme will be t6 reduce
the number of aircraft types, make more effective use
of the fleet and save on operating costs

Total Group capital expendiiure excluding
advance payments amountsed to FIM 1,308 6 million
{878 6) Aurcraft purchases, including spare parts,
equipment and modification work amounted o
FIM 966 8 million and consisted of two Arrbus A321s
and three ATR 72s Capiial spending on buildings
amounted 10 FIM 84 8 mithon {84 0) and other fixed
asseats FIM 247 0 millron (178 1)
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Two MD-80 arcralt and four Saab 340s were sold
The MD-80s were then leased back on sale and
leaseback terms

Financing
OCperational cash flow before capital expenditure was
FIM 891 0 milhon {1,013 0}

Equity ratio at the end of the financial year was
47 6 % ( 46 5 %) Interest bearing net debt for the
Group was FIM 139 0 millon The previous year, iquid
assets were FIM 174 0 million greater than interest
bearing debt Net debt to equity {(gearng) was 4 0 %
{-5 4 %)

Net financial income was FiM 7 2 million (18 9)
rmore than financial costs, which was 0 1 % of turnover
(0 2 %)

Group liguidity remained strong In March 1999
the company signed with 13 European banks for a
USD 250 milhon credit faciity to be used In the long
term financial arrangements for aquiring the Airbus
A320 famiy of planes

Share caplital and shares
Share capital of Finnair Oy at the beginning of the
financial year was FIM 413,982,415 and the number
of shares was 82,796,483 At the end of the financial
year, share capital stood at FIM 423,695,480 and the
number of shares was 84,739,098

Durning the financial year a total of FIM
28,354,000 of a 1992 convertible bond of FiM 150
rmilllon was converted for shares As a result, the share
capntal was raised by FIM 7,711,740

A total of FIM 14,770,000 of a 1884 FiM 230
milhon convertible subordinated bond was converted
tor shares dunng the financial year, as a result of
which, share capital was increased by FIM 2,001,335

The Board of Directors has no current authonty
1o raise share capital further

Return on investment

Return on equity

During the financial year, 20 1 million (21 1) shares
were traded on the Helsinkt Stock Exchange to a value
of FIM 772 O militon {895 1) The market value of the
Company's shares at the end of the financial year was
FiM 2,444 million (4,471) At the end of the financial
year on 31 March 1999, 17 € % of the Company's
shares were registered In the name of a nominee {21 5}
The number of shareholders totalled 8,478 {6,599)
The highest trading price for a share was FIM
59 50 (56 00}, and the lowest FIM 26 40 {34 00} and
the average price was FIM 38 46 (42 50)
Membasars of the Supervisory Board and the
Board of Directors and the President and CEC owned
a total of 13,328 shares on 31 March 1999, which was
0 016 % {0 D0B8) of the entire stock and voting rights
The Annual General Meeting of Finnair Oyj on
20 August 1988 declared a dividend for the 1997/98
financial year of FIM 2 25 per share
Changes to the administration
Antti Potila, who had been President and CEO since 1987,
retired on 31 Dacember 1898 and simuftaneously resigned
from the Board of Directors Mr Kejjo Suila, B Sc(Econ), who
joined the Company on August 1st 1998 was elected as
President and CEQ and took up the post on January 1st 1999
The Annual General Meeting of Finnair Oy on
20th August 1988 elected Peter Heinstrom to the
Supervisory Board to replace Peter Steniund and
journalist Aing Suhola to replace managing director Matt
Piuhola, who had requested to resign Other members
of the Supervisory Board and previous auditors who
were due for re-election were elected again
The Board of Supervisors appointed Samull Haapa-
salo, Ministerial Counsellor, to the Board of Directors as
a new member, from January 1st 1899 At the same time
Jaakko Pohjola, Ministerial Counsellor, resigned from the
Supervisory Board
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Personnel

The average personnel of the Group during the financial
year was 11,264, which was 558 more than the year
before Personnel of the parent company incrgased
by 465 to an average of 9,038 The significant staft
mcreases occurrad in duties closely related to iraffic
but the extensive fleet renewal project also tisd up
more of the workforce in training and technical tasks
A number of projects were carned out at the same
time, such as the iniroduction of the new Airbus A321,
MD-80 modification work, noise damping and other
modifications to the DC-9s, the expanston of the
ATR 72 ileet and related acquisition of used aircraft,
as weli as the phasing out of the Saab 340 aircraft
and the retraining of parsonnel

Two year collective labour contracts signed with
the trade unions in conjunction with a national incomes
poiicy agreament will expire in 2000 In contrast to the
previous financial year the requirements for distnibuting
profit bonuses to the stafi were not met A contract
dispute with pilots of turboprop aircraft erupted as a
result of efforis to standardize labour contracts following
the merger of the Karair oy and Finnaviation Qy
companmies This dispute intermittently disrupted the
regularty of domestc fhghts until Novemnber 1998

The environment

In environmental matters, Finnair conforms to
the environmental principles of the Internatlional Air
Transport Association, IATA and the environmental
regulations 1ssued by the International Civil Aviation
Organization, ICAQ, as well as local laws During
the financial year the decision was taken to fit noise
reduction eguipment to DC-9 aircraft This will be
carried out on 10 planes by the summer of 2000 The
total cost ot this work will be about FIM 100 million
As a result of this project the external noise level as

Productivity of personnel
n fhight operations
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well as noise Inside the rear passenger cabin will fall
to meet the tightening demands set by the ICAQ The
choice of engines for the Company's new Arrbus A320
planes was based on the best environmental
technology avallable
Finnair's catering division became eligible for
registration with the ISO 14001 environmental
proegramme during the year Waste sorting and recychng
have reduced the volume of unsorted waste The aim
is to further reduce the amount of unsorted waste by
30 % and waste water by 10 % by the year 2001
Adopting the euro

The euro came Into effect as an additional urit of billing
and payment on January 1, 1899 The transiion to
the euro will take place In phases, with tickets being
priced 1n euros from March 15th, 2001 and package
tours during the winter season of 2001/02 Primary
accounting and internal billing will move over to the
guro from April 1st 2001 The recommendations of the
Heisinki Stock Exchange will be observed in all public
flnancial reporting, and from now on all sums in annual
and interim reports will be denominated only in eures

Year 2000 and computer systems
All of the Company's roughly 300 computer systems
have been inspected and it was found that about 100
required modification or replacement measures By
the end of the financial year 80 % of the necessary
measures had been carned cut All the most imporiant
business systems are aiready Y2K proof H1s planned
that all unfimshed information technology measures
wil be carried out by September 1998 Finnatr bagan
working on the millennium problem in 1986 It 15
estimated that the overall work will require 25 man-
years and cost a total of about FIM 20 million The
stliuation has tied up the Company's data management
resourcas so completely that it has hindered our own

Average Group personnel by financial year
and sector

1958/99 wogs — Dhange
Flight cperations - 803 — B573 — 465 —
Trave! agenci 1361 — 1297 —— 54 —
Tous operations -—_— 518 — 493 —— 19 —
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computer system developmeant work, and thereby our
efforts to improve efficiency

The entire aviation Industry and not just the airhines,
1s required to come up with a wlde-ranging survey and
other measures to solve the problem issues For therr
part, the leading arrcraft manufacturers have already
made the necessary modifications to ther planes
The International Air Transport Association, |ATA, has
taken on the task of clanfying at central level the effects
of the Y2K transition on the world's airports, alrspace
management, and other services important for air transporn
services The task has proven mors difficull than expected
and more effective measures will be necessary to resclve
the issue The situabion at Finnish airperts and in regional
arr traffic control was scrutimsed 1in April 1998 Finnasr
has been taking part In the IATA work
Prospects for the 1999/2000 financial year
Growth prospects are satisfactory mainly in European,
domestic and leisura traffic, and growth expectations
are supported by econormic growth in the European
countries and ingreases in transport supply The
expansion in domestic and leisure traffic 1s expecied to
continue, given the growth predictions for the Finnish
econocmy and consumer demand Trends in Far Eastern
traffic are still being affected by economic problems in
Asia and growth 1s likely to be modest, although there
have been signs of a gradual recovery Transii traffic
between the USA and Russia accounts for a significant
portion of Finnair's North Atlantic business Growth
expectations, however, cannct be supported by any
signs of improvemnent In the Russian sconomy Overall
traffic supply in terms of passenger kilometres is
estimated to increase by between 5 %

Operations tn the current financial year have begun
briskly, with the market situation in air transport in a state
of mmense ferment The allances are developing their
own internal working methods and common systems

Turnover and operating profit per sector

In the new finangial year, Finnair 1s devoliing a great deal
of its resources 1o the joint projects and training required
for the oneworld allance From the beginming of September
the services offerad by the alhance will become avallable
to Finnair customers too, when ¢cooperation between
Amencan Airlines, British Alrways, Canadian Airlines,
Cathay Pacific Arrways, lbena and Qantas enters its
implementation phase For its part, Finnair will be
strengthemng s oneworld network In northern Europe

Capitai expenditure will be higher than in previous
years, nsing to FIM 1,400 milion Three of the Airbus
A320 type aircraft on order for the fleet renewal
programme will be delivered during the financial year,
while the necessary extenswve traimng for fight and
technical personnel for the new planes will continue
Meanwhile, two DC-9s and one MD-80 will be retired
from the fleet according to plan One ATR 72 will be
taken over as company property on the expiry of its
current lease In addition, technical modifications will be
carried out on the company’'s MD-BD and DC-8 aircraft

The financial results for flight operations are
expected to weaken during the 1993/2000 financial year,
as a result of factors affecting the entire industry, such
as an expected nse In fusl prices and continuing
economic problems in certain traffic areas Finnalr's
results will be affected by the abolition of tax free sales
in the European Union, the Russian economy and the
political situation in certain holiday destinations Group
depreciation and financial costs will Increase as a result
of capital expenditure Measures to improve profitabillty
will include moves towards greater efficiency and
structural changes

in April 1999, atler the financial year had ended,
the company sold its remaining 40 % stake in the hotsl
and caterning company Nordic-Hotel Oy The sale followed
an earher decision to relingush hotel business in order
1o iree up capital for investment 1n aircraft

Turngvar, FIM mill Operating profit, FIM mill \

1998799 1997/98 Change % 1998/99 1997/98 Change % —

Flight operstiens — 78181 7 641 23 M1 ——— 5656 —— 344 —
Trevel ag Lyl 4289 99 200 — 151 —— 3z4 —
Tows opetations — 14425 12635 142 Mg — 17 —— >100 =
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Financial statement principles

The financial statements have been prepaired in
accordance with the new Finmish Accounting
regulations which came into force on Decamber 31,
1997 In all essential respecis these enable the use
of International Accounting Standard {IAS) principles

Apart from the Parent Company Finnair Oy, the
conseolidated financial statements include all those
companies in which the Parent Company holds more
than 50% of the votes sither directly or indiractly

Inter-company transactions, receivables and
dabits and the internal distribution of profit were
eliminated Mutual share ownership was sliminated
with the acquisition cost method The elimination
difference between the acquisition price of affiliate
shares and the equity of the aflihate at acquisition
arising In conjunction with elimination was allocated
primanly to those asset items which caused the
elimination difference and was removed in accerdance
with the depreciation plan for fixed assets The
unallocated eiimtnation differencs, | @ the consohdated
goodwilll, was eliminated at the moment of acquisition
To the extent possible, the financial statements of the
foreign subsicharies were harmonized with the principles
used by the Group before consolidation Translation
to markkas took piace at the middle rate of exchange
and suros at a fixed conversion rate on the day the
books were closed The translation differences caused
by elimination of equity were treated as adjustment
items for conseclidated equity Portions of the earnings
of companies in which the Group owns from 20-50%
of the shares and votes were combined In the
consolidated fInancial statements using the equity
method The portion of the profit for the financial year
corresponding to the Group’s holding I1s presented in
the consolidated statement of protit and loss The
consolidated goodwill for the other participating interest
was entered as a non-recurring expense

Items denominated
in foreign exchange

Recelvables, debts and Labllities were translated into
markkas at the official middle rate of exchange and
eurps at a fixed conversion rate on the day the books

a2

were closed Parent Company's advance payments
made and received were entered In the balance sheet
at the rate on the dete of payment Exchange rate
differences related to business operations were treated
as adjustments of sales and purchases Exchange rate
differences related to hedging for financial and forergn
currencies positions were entered as exchange rate
differences under financial ncome and sxpenses
Accumulated exchange rate differences were entersd
in thewr entirety in the profit and loss statement
Derivative agreements
Interest related to derivative agreements made to
hedge against foreign exchange and interest rate
risks was entered on an accrual basis as sither interest
Income or expense Exchange rate differences were
entered as exchange rate differences under financial
iIncome and expensas However, exchange rate
differences on separate derivative financial instruments
that provided hedging for specific off-balance
sheet items were deferred until recognltion of the
underlying 1tem
Fixed assets and depreciation
The balance sheet values ior fixed assets are based
on ornginal acquisition costs less planned depreciation
Planned depreciation 1s based on the economic
service hie of the asset and on the book acquisition
cost Depreciation 1s calculated with the following
principles, depending on ihe type of asset
* Buildings in accordance with the maximum
percentages under the Business Taxation Act,
4-7% of the undepreciated residual value
* Arcraft and aircraft engines on a strarght-hne
bases as follows
- New Airbus A320 aircraft aquired during the financial
year In 20 years to a residual value of 10 %
- aquired before as new arrcraft in 15 years to
a residual valus of 10%
- ysed jet arcratt more than six years old In
10 years to a residual value of 10%
- turboprop arrcraft in 12 years to a residual
value of 10%
* Straight-line depreciation 1s 10 years for aircraft
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simulators and five years for computers worth

more than FIM 1 millien
» Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 1s 23%

of the undepreciated residual value
¢ Capitalized long-term expenditures are depreciated

in 5-10 years, depending on their nature

The differsnce between planned and booked
depreciation was entered n the profit and loss
statements of the separate companies as a change in
depreciation difference In the balance sheet the
depreciation difference 1s included in the accumulation
of appropnations under habilities The depreciation
ditference in the consolidated financial statements was
divided in the balance sheet into unrestncted equity
and deferred tax liabillty
Inventories
Inventories comprise the spare parts and materials
needed for aircraft repair and maintenance and stocks
for customer services Inveniories were evaluaied at
the average acquisition cost The value of work In
progress includes average salary costs, excluding
salary-related costs, used stocks of materials and
supplies and subcontracting work
Current assets
Securities entered under current assets are evaluated
at the lower of onginal acquisition cost or market value
Leasing
Lease payments for Group aircraft are significant Annual
lease payments are treated as rent expsnses Lease
payments due in future years under aurcraft lease
contracts are presented as off-balance sheet items
Turnover
Apart from trade discounts and sales taxes, adjus-
tements to gross sales, which previously were inciuded
in turnover, have now been presented in other operating
expenses according to the new accounting regulations
With respect t0 these items, the accounting periods
have been made comparable
Expenditure on research
and development

Research and development on aircraft, systems and
opserations 1s conducted pnmanly by manufacturers

a3

Company development ventures related to aircraft and
other fixed assets are capitahzed at acgquisition cost
and depreciated over ithe period for which they

are current Research and product development
expenditure for marketing and customer Service 1s
entered as an annual expense for the year in which
1t 1s incurred

Taxes and the change
in deferred tax liability

Estimated taxes on profits for the financial year,
adjustments in taxes for previous financial years and
the change in deferred taxes were entered Iin the profit
and loss statement as taxes The deferred tax hability
18 computed according to the tax rate in effect dunng
the financial year Deferred tax hability due to timing
differences 1s recorded in the notes to the financial
statements and has not been taken into account when
calculating the key figures
Penslon schemes

In the Group's domeslic companies mandatory and
other pension coverage for personnel has primarily
been arranged through the Finnair pension fund and
other mandatory pension coverage has been arranged
through domestic insurance companies

The Finnarr pension fund Is a joint fund
including the Parent Company and six affillates Both
mandatory employment pension coverage and
additional pension security are arranged by the fund
for the Parent Company and two affillates Since 1882,
the pension fund has no longer accepted employees
other than ptlots for additlonal pension coverage |

The Finnair pension fund’s pension liability
1s fully paid up with respect to basic and additional
coverage except for the compulsory hability deficit
required by the Ministry of Social Atfarrs and Health
Pension fund habilities are presented in the Notes to
the Financial Statemenis

The foreign affihales pension coverage has been
arranged according 1o teocal legislation and practise

The retirement age of the CEQ and the managing
directors of the affilates vary between 60-65, based
on agreemeants



[ CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 1

Conscolidated profit and loss statement

FIM mill EUR mill FIM mikl EUR mill Notes
April 1, 1998 - Apnil 1, 1998 - April 1, 1997 Aprfl 1, 1887 -
March 31, 1889 March 31, 1899 March 31, 1998 March 31, 1998
Turnover 86833 14041 B5936 14453 1
Work used for own purposes and caphizllzed 118 20 114 19
Dther operating Income 1459 245 168 3 283 2
Share of profits tess losses of particlpating Interests 01 00 29 05
DPERATING INCOME 90411 15206 87761 14760
OPERATING EXPENSES
Materlals and services 26556 446 6 26400 444 0 3
Staff costs 25955 436 5 23922 402 3 4
Depreciation 545 2 18] 502 5 B4 5 5
Other operating expenses 2Bi72 473 8 26336 442 9 6
-B6145 -1 4489 -8 168 3 -1 3738
OPERATING PROFIT 426 6 nit 607 8 102 2
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES 72 12 188 32 7
PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 4337 729 626 7 1054
Extraordinary ltems 200 34 EX) 06 L}
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 4537 763 6303 106 0
DIRECT TAXES 10
Income 1axes -107 4 181 -1191 -200
Change in deferred tax Jtabilitiy -8 03 45 -01
-1083 -184 -118 6 -201
MINORITY SHARE -12 -02 -1 0 -02

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 343 3 577 509 7 857
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Consohidated

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Financial assets
Shares [n participating Interests
Cther investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventorles

Long-term receivables
Short-term recelvables
Investments

Cash and bank equivalenis

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Share capltal

Share premium account
Generat reserve

Retained earnings

Profil for tha financial year
Capltai loan

Total equity

MINDRITY INTERESTS

LIABILITIES

Deterred 1ax liabliltles
Long term liabliitles
Shart-term Nabtlities

| CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET )

balance sheet

FIM mill EUR miil FiM mill EUR mill Notes
March 31,1889 March 31,1999 March 31, 1998 March 31, 1988
11
124 1% 209 838 158
45635 767 5 39804 669 5
50 08 49 o8
B0 47306 64 7956 381 41182 66 6926
2732 459 2363 397 12
260 44 a3z 56 13
13349 224 5 12807 215 4 14
848 0 159 4 13170 2215 15
838 26657 141 448 3 541 30212 259 508 1 16
73863 12440 71384 12008
37
4237 73 4140 696
335 56 oo 00
882 8 148 5 8928 148 5
17223 280 7 13991 2353
3433 34056 577 5128 5087 32057 B57 5382
34 57 439 B2 21
34397 5765 32546 547 4
26 04 2% 04
344 % 578 3421 575 19
4229 130 4 11223 1888 20,22,24
27871 39540 4568 6650 24182 38826 4067 6530 23
7396 3 12440 7139 4 12008
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Consolidated cash flow statement

FIM mlil EUR mil FIM mEls EUR milk
Aptil 1, 1998 - Apnl 1, 1998 - Aprit 1, 1997 - Aprid 1, 1997 -
March 31, 1899 March 31, 1999 March 31, 1998 March 31, 1998
Buslness operatlons
Operating profit 427 72 608 102
Deprectation 545 ¥ 503 85
Change In working caplial {net)
Inventories, Increase{-), decrease{+} -37 -6 -34 6
Shori-term recelvables, Increase{ ),decreasef+} -54 -8 185 -33
on Inferest bearing short-ierm kahilktes, Increasa+ ), docreasey ) 208 35 327 55
Financial Income and expenses (net} 7 1 18
Extraordinary items 20 3 4 1
Taxes =108 =18 120 20
Cash flow from operations (net) 1007 169 1112 187
Investments
Investments In flight equipment -967 -163 617 -104
Investments n buildings -85 -16 -84 -14
Cther Investments -247 -42 -178 -30
Change in advance payments -83 -14 -113 -18
Gapltal expenditure, total -1391 -234 -991 -167
Sales of fixed assets 232 ki) 417 70
Cash flow of investmenis -1159 -185 -575 -97
Cash flow before financing -182 -26 537 90
Financing
Decrease of long-term debts -282 -49 307 -52
Long-term receivables, inceease(-), decrease(+) 0 D 1] 0
Short term debts, ingreass(+}, decreasel ) 162 27 1 0
Dividencs -186 -3 -B2 -14
Desrease of capltal loan -15 -2 -25 -4
Dther eqully, increase(+), decrease!-) 43 7 26 L]
Cash flow of tinancing -287 -48 389 -65
Change In llquld funds,
Increase(+), decrease( ) In statement -439 -74 148 25
Liquld funds, Aprll 3 147 247 1323 223
Liquid funds, decrease{-}, Increase(+) in balance sheet -439% ~74 148 25
Liguid funds, March 31 1032 174 147 247
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[ FINNAIR OYJ PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT )

Finnair Oy

Profit and loss statement

FiM mill EUR mill FIM mill EUR mill Notes
April 1, 1998 - Apnl1, 1998 - Aprll 1, 1997 - Aprfl 3, 1987 -
March 31, 1863 March 31, 1999 March 31, 1998 Warch 31, 1998
Turnover 78122 13129 76354 128472 1
Work used for awn purgoses and capltalized 118 20 i1é 19
Other operaling income 146 3 246 167 6 282 2
OPERATING INCOME 70703 13405 78144 13143
DPERATING EXPENSES
Materials and services 20723 3485 21123 3553 3
Stati costs 2215 3820 20975 kL1 4
Depreclation 5226 B7 9 483 6 813 5
Dther operating expenses 27329 459 6 25658 4209 3]
~75004 -12781 -7 2492 -12192
OPERATING PROFIT 319 624 5652 951
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES 224 38 378 64 7
PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 39833 661 6029 101 4
Extraordinary ftems 200 34 36 0B B
PROF{T BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES 4133 €95 6066 1020
Appropriations 66 -11 -1 4 -0z 9
[Direct taxes 947 -159 -112 5 ~18 & 10
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 3120 525 4927 829
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Finnair Oy)
Balance sheet

FIM mill EUR mill FIM mull ELR mill Notes

ASSETS March 31, 1999 March 31, 1999 March 31, 1998 March 31, 1998
FIXED ASSETS i
Intangible assets 953 160 784 132
Tangiple assets 4502 4 7573 38218 658 6
Financizl assets

Share in group undertakings 507 85 514 86

Other investments 376 46861 63 788 1 363 40879 61 687 5
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventones 2707 455 2342 394 12
Long term recelvables 239 40 309 52 13
Short term receivables 10798 1816 10187 1715 14
Investments 948 0 159 4 13170 2215 15
Cash and bank eguivalents 660 23835 111 4017 1307 27326 2290 459 6 16

70746 11889 6 820 4 1147 14

SHAREHOLDERS S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 17
Share capital 4237 7113 43140 696
Share premium account 335 56 00 a0
Genaral reserve 8828 148 5 og2 8 1485
Reta:ned earnings 814 6 1370 508 2 855
Profit for the financial yaar 3120 24665 525 414 8 4927 22417 829 3864
Capisal loan 341 57 489 §2 21
Total equity 25006 4206 23466 3947
ACCUMULATED APPARCPRIATIONS 12279 206 5 12213 205 4 18
LIABILITIES
Long term Jiabilities 806 9 1357 11026 1854 20 22 24
Short term habilitles 25391 33460 4270 562 8 21499 32525 3616 5470 23

7 0746 11899 6820 4 11471




{ FINNAIR OY. CASH FLOW STATEMENT ]

Finnair Oy
Cash flow statement

Fi mull EUR mill FIM mi1l EUR mill
Apnl 1, 1898 - April 1, 1998 - April 1, 1997 April 1, 1807 -
March 31, 1999 March 31, 1999 March 31, 1898 March 31, 1998
Buslness operations
Operating protit 3n 62 565 95
Depreciatlon 523 88 484 81
Change In working czpital (nef)
Inventories, Increase( }, decrease{+) -37 -6 -34 -6
Short-term receivables, Increase( },decreasa{+} -60 -10 152 -26
Non terest bearing short-term kablites, increase(+), decreasef) 225 38 279 47
Financlal income and expenses {net) 22 4 38 6
Extraordinary items 20 3 4 1
Taxes -85 =16 112 -19
Cash flow from operations {net) 970 163 1071 180
Investments
Investments In flight equipment -867 -163 -617 -104
Investments tn buildings -85 16 B4 -14
Other investmants -208 -35 151 -25
Change in advanze payments -B3 =14 - 113 -19
Capltal expenditure, total -1 353 -228 -864 -162
Sales of fixed assets 232 39 413 69
Cash flow of investments 1121 -189 551 -93
Cash flow before flnancing -151 -25 520 )
Flnancing
Decrease of long-term debts -288 ~49 203 -42
Long term recelvables, Increase( ), detrease(+) 1 4] 1] G
Short-term debts, increase{+}, decrease{ } 164 28 -3 1]
Dlvidends ~1B6 =31 -82 -14
Decrease of capltal lean -15 -2 -25 -4
Other equity, increase(+), decrease(-} 43 7 26 4
Cash flow of Tinancing -282 -47 -376 -63
Change In tiquld funds,
Increase(+), dectease(-) In statement -434 -73 144 24
Liquid funds, Aptil 1 1 448 243 1304 219
Liquid funds, decrease!{ ), Increasa{+) In balance sheat -434 -73 344 24
Llguid funds, March 31 1014 171 1448 243
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Notes to the financial statements

{ NOTES ]

Group Parent Company
FiM mifl FIM mibl

1698/09 1807/96 1908/89 1997/88
Turnover by division
Flight aperations 78161 76418 78122 76354
Travel agencies 471 4 4289 - -
Tour operations 14425 12635 - -
Other operations 214 4 1947 - -
- Less Internal adjustments -10611 -835 4 - -
Total B 883 3 8 593 6 78122 76354
Distribution of tunover by market areas, as % of tumover
Finland 4500 % 4100% 3800 % 3400%
Europe 4100 % 38 00 % 46 00 % 4300 %
Other countries 14 00 % 2100 % 1600 % 2300%
Total 100 00 % 100 00 % 100 00 % 100 00 %
Other revenus from business operations
Capital galn on flight equipment 701 1423 01 1423
Other items 758 260 761 253
Total 14548 168 3 146 3 167 6
Materlals and services
Materlals and consumables
Materials and supples for aleraft maktenance and overtal 248 § 2710 2485 Fral]
Purchases of materials and supplies for passenger services 449 5 4252 5040 4726
Fuel purchases for flight operations 566 B 6995 666 6 698 8
Dther items 48 393 - -
Change In Inventorles -36 8 -34 1 =36 5 -343
Total 12727 14009 12625 14082
Cutside services
Ground handiing charges 2850 2902 2850 290 2
Ground service expenses for tour operstions 557 4 4373 - -
Aircraft malmenance and overhau! 184 2 161 1 184 2 1610
Expenses for data adminlstration 1639 1388 157 4 133 4
Other ltems 192 4 2117 163 2 119 8
Total 13829 12391 7898 704 2
Materiats and services total 26556 2 640 & 20123 21123
Staft costs
Wages and salarles 2006 3 18636 1746 B 16220
Penslon costs 31846 258 2 286 2 230 B
Payment of employee borus into the persennel fund - 240 - 240
Other Indlrect empioyee costs 270 6 246 4 2385 2207
Total 25955 23922 22715 2087 6
Salaries of Board of Directors and Managing Directors
Administration and managing directors 71 54 33 21
Personnel on average
Flight operations 2038 8573 8038 8 573
Travel agencies 1351 1297 - -
Tour operatlons 518 499 - -
Qther opetations 357 337 - -
Total 11 264 16 706 8038 8 573
Depreclation
Planned depeeciation n the profit and logs statement
On other long term expenditure 249 165 184 136
On buildings 307 25 05 26 3
On flight equipment 3773 3545 arra 354 5
On other eguipment 1133 1050 96 4 B9 1
Total 545 2 502 5 522 6 483 6




6 Other operating expenses
Lease payments for alrcratt
Short-term leases for aircraft
Rents
Traffic charges
Sales and marketing expenses
Other items
Total

-~

Financlal income and expenses

Dividends

Dividends from group undertakings
Dividends from participating Interests

From others

Dividends totat

Inferest Income from long-term Investments
From group undertakings

Interest income from gthers

Total

Income from long-term investments total
Other interest and financial Income

Interest income from group undertakings
Interest income from others

FInanclal Income from others

Total

Interest incoume from long-term Investments and
other interest and financlal income, total
Value adjustments of investments

Value adjustments of marketable securities
Tota!

Interest and other {inarcial expenses
interest expense to group undertakings
Interest expense to others

Other financlal expenses to others

Total

Flnancial Income and expense total
Exchange rate gains are Included In the ltem
Interest and flnanctal Income

Exchange rate losses are Incluged In the llem
Interest and financkal expenses

o

Extraordinary items

Extraordinary income, received compensation
Extracrdinary income, infa, refunded bad debts
Extraordinary expenses, wrlte off of opfion payment
Total

©

Appropttations

Difference between planned deprectation and
depreciation In taxation

Buildings

Equipment

Increase (-)}/decrease {+) In untaxed reserves
Total

10 Taxes
Income taxes on extraordinary ltems
Income taxes on regular buslness operatlons
Change in delerred tax liabilitles
Total

[ NOTES ]

Group Parent Company
FIM mlit FIM mill

1908/99 1997/98 1898/89 1997/98
3078 204 4 3078 204 4
2487 727 2487 1727
2676 240 7 2234 108 2
648 5 659 0 648 5 6590
6392 688 2 728 8 784 9
7053 668 6 5757 536 6
28172 26336 27329 25558
254 282
02 - - -
D4 12 03 02
[\l 12 87 28 4
o3 02
78 586 78 56
78 56 81 58
85 68 338 342
0g 04
784 718 134 66 6
101 266 06 261
BB 5 9583 B39 9431
870 1051 nur? 127 3

05 11 DS -

0s -11 05 -
70 58
-52 4 -695 516 677
-378 157 372 -148
-90 3 -85 2 -95 8 -B8 5
72 189 224 378
88 2686 96 26 1
-288 105 -285 104
200 - 200 -
- 73 - 73
- 36 - -36
200 36 200 36
27 -
- - B4 -146 0
- - - 144 6
- - -6 6 -14
56 10 586 10
1018 1181 891 1115

19 05 -

108 3 119 6 94 7 1125
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11 Flxed assets

Intangible rights
Acquisitfon cost April 1
Increases Aprll 1 - March 31
Book value March 31
Other long term expenditute
Acquksition cost April 1
Increases April 1 - March 31
Decreases Aprl! 1 - March 31
Accumulated planned depreclation
April 1 March 31 from decreases
Acquisition cost March 31
Accumulated planned depreclation March 31
Book value March 31
Land
Acquisition cost April i
Intreases Aprll 1 - March 31
Decreases April 1 - March 31
Book value March 31
Bulldings
Acauisition cost Apell 1
Increases Aprll 1 - March 31
Decreases April 1 March 31
Acumulated planned depreciation
Apill 1 - March 31 from decreases
Acruisitlon cost March 31
Accumulated planned depreclation March 31
Book value March 31

Accumetatad difference between total and ptanned deprectation Apel 1

Ingrease In the depreciation differance April 1- March 31

[ NOTES ]

Accummulated difference between total and planned depraciabion March 31 -

Filght equipment
Acquisition cost April 1

Ingreases Aprll 1 - March 31

Decreases April 1 - March 31

Accumutated planned depreclation

April 1 - March 3% from decreases
Acquisition cost March 31

Accumutated planned depreclation March 31
Book value March 3t
Ditference between total and planned depredation April 1
tncrease in the depreciztion difference Apdl 1 - March 31
Differenca between total and planned depreciation March 31
Other equipment
Acqulsition cost Aprll 1

Increases April 1 - March 31

Decreases Aprli 1 - March 31

Accumulated planned depreciation

Aprit 1 March 31 from decreases
Aeguisition cost March 31

Accumulated planned depreciation March 31
Book value March 31

Accuenutated difference hetween total and planned deprecition Apr 1
Decrease in the depreciation difference April 1 - March 31

Accurmutzted difference between total and planned depreclation March 31 -

Share of machines and equipment in book valve March 31

Advance payments

Acquisition cost April 4
Increases Aprll § - March 31

Book value March 31

Insurance values of lixed assets

Balance sheet values of alrcraft and spare englnes

Insurance value FIM
Insurance value USD

Insurance values of Group assels are based on repurchase values lnsurance values for flight equipment are USD-based Aepurchase values for other flxed assets are not

specilled in detail

Group Parant Company
FIM mill FIM mill

1998/09 1997/98 1988/99 1997/88
BE 86 84 B4
06 - 06 -
g2 86 80 B4
183 8 1401 1418 980
638 507 433 42 9
-9z 02 -85 -
35 -67 -35 -
2350 183 8 1731 1418
-120 % -98 7 -B68 -7119
114 & 851 B6 3 700
48 48 43 43

oo - .
48 48 43 413
836 1 7849 B2r b 7704
950 842 84 840
-33 -26 4 -33 -264
0o -06 0o -02
g27 8 8361 9194 B278
-422 4 -391 7 =419 4 -388 8
505 4 444 4 500 0 436 9
. B 68 4 0o
- . -27 66 4
- 657 BB 4
55414 5704 4 55414 56969
966 B B16 5 966 8 6165
-218 2 -384 9 -218 2 -384 9
-62 4 -394 7 -62 4 -389 1
62275 55414 62275 5541 4
-2 908 1 +25933 -2 808 1 -25833
33194 2 #1481 33194 2 948 1
11471 10630
13 6 841
- - 1160 6 1147 1
12192 11135 10677 964 0
1835 1229 163 1 105 1
-23 =22 -13 -14
=15 8 -14 8 -15 9 -
13845 12192 12136 10677
-850 0 -B62 6 -B44 3 -7638
424 & 356 B 369 2 3039
- - 58 12 3
- - -42 65
N 16 56
36974 3264 2 3 657 3 J2214
226 B 1138 226 6 1138
826 1128 B2 9 112 8
309 § 226 6 3095 226 6
33194 29481
6BBT 9 70829
1244 4 12635
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[ NCTES ]

Financial assets Numer Group Parent Company Group book  Profit / loss of Group share Closing
of shares ownership % ownership % value  financlal year of equity date

Participating Interests FIM 1000 FiM 1000 FIM 1000

Nordic Hotel Oy, HelsInki 9 600 40 00 40 00 1760 480 2603 Dec 31,88

Finnlsh Amerlcan International Trade Inc , USA 1000 20 00 20 00 429 347 4894 Dec 31,98

Suomen Jakelutiet Oy, Helslnki 15 47 50 - 15 362 863 Dec 31,98

Amadeus Estonla, Viro 98 3325 - 38 421 392 Dec 31,88

Totvelomat Qy, Helsinki 500 48 30 - 50 B4 639  Mar 31,89

Total 2293 30 4 991

Affiliates

Kilntelstd Oy Aerolan A-talot 7500 100 00 100 00 1320 0 223 Mar 31,09

Kiintelstd Oy Aerolan B-talot 200 100 G0 100 00 200 0 154  Mar 31,88

Malmilento Oy 5000 100 00 100 00 500 179 1474  Mar 31,99

Amadeus Finland Oy 190 85 Do 95 00 1800 7 563 14 057  Mear 31,88

Area Travel Agency Ltd 650 000 100 00 100 00 11 476 4760 13847 Mar 31,89

Area Baltica ReislbOrao AS, Estonla 850 100 00 100 00 400 1 0 Mar 3,99

ZAD Norvista, Russla 10 100 0D . 10 406 -3124  Mar 31,989

A/S Estraval Ltd, Estonla 9110 7202 7202 1 666 1165 2628 Mar 31,988

Eastern Holding 72 02 - 15 0 15 Mar 31,98

BMR Asireklasm) 00, Estonla 100 72 02 - 4 67 -55  Mar 31,99

Oy Aurlnkomatkat - Suntours Ltd Ab 2913 87 07 78 27 1358 10 500 17789  Mar 31,99

Finlandla Travel Agency Ltd, UK 50 000 100 00 96 68 222 78 1500 Mar 31,89

Finlandia Agence de Voyages S AR L, France 400 99 8o 99 80 38 41 202 Mar 1,99

Finnalr Travet Services Oy 50 000 100 60 100 00 5 980 254 7189  Mar 3i, 89

Finncatering Oy 4 470 100 00 100 00 6084 6200 13543  Mar 21,99

Norvista Travel, Canada 1000 100 00 100 00 4 3 112 Mar 31,99

Oy Annmatkat - Fiantours Ab 150 100 60 100 00 580 3354 4 647  Mar 31,04

Norvista Ltd, USA 200 100 00 100 00 10 5 642  Mar 31,99

Karalr Ab, Sweden 100 160 00 100 Q0 80 0 0 Mar 21,909

Business Flight Center Oy 5 160 G0 100 00 ] 0 0 Mer 31,89

Mikkelln Matkatolmlsto Oy 1224 51 00 - 163 225 1131 Mar 31,89

Finnalr Gateway Ravintolat Oy 10 000 100 00 100 00 10 000 5018 16253  Mar 31,99

Horvista Travel AB, Sweden 1260 100 00 100 00 600 -78 777 Mear 31,99

Norvista SR L, ltaly 100 00 100 00 504 7 428 Mar 31,99

Norvista GmbH, Germany 100 60 100 00 931 -20 836  Mar 31,89

Norvista B ¥, Netherlands 40 100 00 100 00 108 0 -72  Mar 31,98

Kuoplon Matkatolmiste Oy 750 99 8O - 800 7 1276  Mar 31,99

Verkauden Matkatoimisto Oy 1290 79 62 798 97 576  Mar 31,99

Finfand Travel Bureay Ltd 300 896 99 90 99 80 6 923 8972 16811 Mar 31,99

Group {otal 52 697 48012 114 68%

I affillate shares owned by affillates -1983

Parent Company total 50 704

Other shares

Polygon Insurance Company Lid 544 500 9 450

Sampo Insurance Company 1686 n

0XR-Issuers Co pperative 6 120

HEX, L, Heksinkd Stock end Dexivatives Exchiange, Cearing House 24 400 170

Helsinkl Telephone Corposation 5185 328

Oy TEN-MAR Fastighets Ab 854 1279 10 80 2227

Helslnkl Harll Oy 18 1280

Golfsarivik 1 105

Asunto Oy Joensuun Kirkkokatu 21 228 610

Asunto Oy Koltere Bostads Ab, Lalvanvarustajankatu 4 3 864

Asunto Oy Mannerhelmintle 100 59 136 136 137

Asunto Oy Metsitorppa, Kauppalanile 48 63 438 438 13

Asunto Oy Neltsytpoliu 9 70 471

Asunto Oy Neltsytpolku 11 65 1016

Asunto Oy Octavus, Mannerhelmintie 84 8 650 6 50 250

Asunto Oy Peter, Raatimlehenkatu 4 8 435

Asunto Oy Pietarinkatir 11 7 508

Asunto Oy Pietarinkatu 12 70 696

Asunto Dy Tenholantie 4 912 812 912 152

Asunto Oy Pehesaark 506 1144

Klintelstd Oy Clivkulma 8 861 349

Klinteistd Oy Helkintarl 1640 150 234

Klinteistd Oy Lentjantle 1 2804 19 50 18 50 5 B4B

Klinteistd Oy Tapiolan 5a3stdtamml 237 807

Klinteistd Oy Lentoasemakilntelstdt 1368

Slta Tetecommunications Holding N V 527 846 437

Other companiess with a book value of less than AM 100,000 870

Telephone company shares 4254 3 408

Total 33 681
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[ NOTES ]

Group Parent Company
FIM mill FIM mill

1998799 18687/98 1898799 1997/98
Other financial assets, loan recelvables
From Group companles 45 46
From participating intesest 05 05 - -
From other companies 38 47 38 43
Total 43 52 B3 89
Inventorles
Materlals and suepplies 2635 2275 2610 2255
Work in progress a7 87 97 B7
Total 2732 236 3 270 7 234 2
Long-term receivables
Long term recelvables from others
Trade recelvables 06 - - -
Prepald expenses 01 - - -
Other recelvables 253 331 239 309
Totai 260 331 239 308
Short-term recelvables
Short term recelvables from group undeftakings
Trade recelvables - - 1236 1070
Prepald expenses - - 15 49
Other recelvables - - - 78
Total - - 1251 1186
Short term recelvables from particlpating interests
Trade recelvables 01 02 0o 01
Prepzld expenses 00 0o - 00
Total 01 02 0o 01
Short-tesm receivables from others
Trade receivables 660 2 B8O 8 379 6 3935
Prepald expenses 3245 2717 27197 2296
DOther receivables 3501 3219 285 4 276 9
Total 13348 12805 954 7 800 0
Shont term recelvables total 13348 12807 1079 8 10197
Investments
Marketable securitles 948 0 13170 946 0 13170
The ditference between market value and activated ecquisition cos! Is no! essentlal
Cash and bank equivalents
Cash and bank equivalents comprlse funds in Group bank accounts
Equlty
Share capital, Aprll 1 4140 4103 4140 410 3
Conversion of convertible subordinated bond 20 33 20 33
Conversion ol convertible bonds 77 04 77 04
Share capltal, March 31 4237 4140 4237 4140
Capital pald in excess of par value, April 1 oo - 0o -
Share premium 334 00 334 00
Capital pakd In excess of par value, March 31 335 0o 335 00
Generai recerve, March 31 BB2 B B8z 8 BB2 8 gsz 8
Retalned earnings, April 1 18088 14809 106008 590 2
Dividend payment -186 3 -821 -186 3 B21
Transiation difference -03 03 - -
Retained earnings, March 31 17223 73981 B14 6 508 2
Proflt for the financial year 3433 509 7 20 492 7
Capital ipan, March 31 and Aprli 1 341 48 9 341 48 9
Total equity 34397 32546 25006 23466
Distributable equity
Retained earnings, Aprll 1 15088 14809
Dividend payment ~186 3 -g21
Translation difference -03 03
Proflt for the financlal year 3433 5007

20656 19089
Voluntary reserves in equlty -BB4 7 8787

11809 10281
Voluntary reserves
Actumulzted depreclation difference 12281 12215
Recldental block reserve 07 04

12288 12219
Deferred tax liablilty of voluntary reserves -344 1 -3421
Total 684 7 8797
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[ NOTES ]

Group Parent Company
FIM mill FIM mtll
1998/09 1997/88 1855/29 1997798

18 Accumulated appropriations

Accumuiated depreclation difference - - 12219 12213
19 Deferred tax lablility

Deferred tax liabllity, Aprll 1 342 % 34186 - -

Changes 19 05 - -

Deferred tax liabllity in balance sheet, March 31 3441 342 1 - -

Deferred tax iiability caused by timing differences 2366 2370 2386 2170
20 tong term ilablilties

Subordinated loan 2450 2338 2450 2338

Loans from financial institutions 664 3008 657 208 8

Penslon loans 485 7 554 6 4723 5300

Othes long-term liabllities 259 231 240 10

Tota! B22 9 1122 3 806 9 11026

Repayment of loans

Financlal year 2000/2001 B9 0 g5 8

Financlal year 2001/2002 882 950

Financlal year 2002/2003 654 622

Financlal year 2003/2004 654 622

Financial year 2004 - 504 9 57

Total 822 9 806 B
21 Convertible subordinated bonds (Capital loan)

2

N

Convertible subordlinated bonds of FIM 230,000,000 were Issued on February 28, 1894, with an annual Interest rate of 7 per cent until the year 2004 Thereafter, the interest
rate will be flva percentage polnts above the 12-month Helibor The bonds are undated
The bond Issue En question ks by nature a tapltal ioan and has the followlng features Iin common with this type of credit
1 Recelvables based on the loan are In a less preferential position than other Company commitments,
2 The toan can be repald only in the event that the Company's restricted equity, computed In accordance with the Parent Company balance sheet and consolidated
bafance sheet approved for the previous financial year, Is fully covered,
3 Annual Intesest cannot be pald In excess ol non-restricted equlty on an Interest payment date as reported In the accounts of the Company contirmed by the previous
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, or distributable non-restricted eqully as reported In consolldated Group accounts for the szme perlod, the payment of Interest
Is In prefesence to the payment of dividends
4 The loan is unsecured
5§ The helder of the bond Is not entltted to give notlce or demand early repayment unless the Company Is In ligutdation
According to the terms of the bonds, Finnalr Oy s entitled, provided that the repayment terms are met, to pay back the principal In part or In full a5 of Sepiember 2, 2004,
and alse from the beginning of the loen perlod whenever the price of a Finnalr Oy] share on the Helslnki Stock Exchange exceeds the computed conversion price by 40 par
ceat for the perkod specified in the terms
One debenture with a nominal value of FIM 10,000 can be converted to 271 Finnair Oyj shares at a nominal price of FIM 5 each The computed converston price of a
share Is therefore FIM 36 90 The annual conversion perlod is January 1 to January 31 and April 1 te December 31
By March 31, 1989 bonds worth FIM 195,890,000 had been converted to 5,308,619 shares, after which the amount of the convertible bond is FIM 34,110,000 Should
all the unconverted bonds on March 31, 1999 be exchanged for shares, the Company's share capltal would Increase by FiM 4,621,805 which is the equivalent of 824,381 shares

Subordinated loan

During the tinanclal year 1980/37 Finnalr took a perpetual undated subordinated loan of 21 blllion Japanese yen on the Japanese capital market A repayment of JPY 15 5
billion was made on the joan in May 1994 The lenders are In a less preferential position than the other creditors althouph they are in a more preferentlal position than the
holders of the eohvertible subordinated bend
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{ NOTES )

Group Parent Company
FIM mlli FIM mill
1998/99 1997/98 1898/89 1997/98
23 Shont-term Habllities

Liabliittes to group underteklngs
Trade payables - 235 160
Accruals and deferred income - - 65 44
Other llabilites - - 2431 1796
Total . - 2731 2001
Liablllties to participating Interests
Trade peyables 12 24 11 23
Other llabllities 13 - 13
Total 25 24 24 23
Liabllitles to others
Loans from financtal institutlons 23314 712 2329 69 2
Pension leans - oo - -
Advances recelved 168 B 142 3 - -
Trade payables 5170 5232 286 6 3138
Accruals and deferred Income 15711 13505 1460 2 12532
Other llabllities 294 3 3285 2738 3112
Total 27846 24158 22635 1947 5
Short-term liabllitles total 2 7871 24182 25391 2148 8
Accruals and deferred Income
Unearmed alr transport reverwes and kablily for frequest fiyer bonus system™ 741 7 5747 M7 5747
Holiday pay reserve 3698 3451 3308 308 &
Other items 459 5 430 7 394 2 3743
TJotal 15711 13505 1466 7 1257 6

*) FIM 105,9 million in unused akriine tickets from at beast two years age was entered es turnover The item Includes a liabillty of FEM 74,6 million for the Finnalr Plus Frequent
Flyer Bonus System Other ltems Include undue Interest and other deferred Income tor the financla! year

24 Penslon liabllities
Total llabllity of pension fund 31518 28421 28553 26639
-mandatory portlon covered -1623 6 14269 -14656 -i 2880
Kon-mandatory benefit covered -15191 -14000 -14815 -13622
Uncovered liabllity of pension tund 91 152 81 137
Liability for penslons pald directly by the companles 162 178 158 173
Liabliity included In other fong-term Babliitles 253 331 239 309
25 Guarantees and contingent ifabllities
Pledges on own behatf 2335 2232 23286 2223
Guarantees on group undertakings 2326 157 & 2326 157 8
Total 466 1 3810 465 1 380 1
26 Alrcraft lease obllgations
Amgounts due tp be patd
Financlal year 1998/2000 3433
Financlal year 2000/2001 2756
Financlal year 2001/2002 332
Financlal year 2002/2003 2065
Financlal year 2003/2004 728
Financial year 2004 - 226 6
Total 15380

2

-t

Alrcratt lease payments

The above lease payments comprise unpald rentals under outstanding finance leases (FIM 220 3 milllon) and operating leases (FIM 3,317 7 millon) With respect 1o certain
of the finance leases, Finnalr Oyj has made a deposlt corresponding to the agreed purchase optipn payment As at March 31, 1899, the present value of the maximum
remalning finance lease payments, Inctuding the agreed purchase opllon payments, was FIM 210 8 milllon

Under operating leases, unlike finance leases, Finnalr Oyj Is only pbliged to pay rent for the relevant lease term with no llabllity on termination, the economic risk of
ownership remalning with the lessor Under finance leases, Finnalr Oyt pays rentals to cover the finance costs, has an option to purchese the relevant altcraft at an agreed
price, and bears the residual value risk Thetefore, Finnair Oyj may be subject to certaln additional payments arising on the termination of the relevant financa leases,
depending on the future resale vatue of the alrcraft No provisions have been made by Finnzlr Oyj for any such payments, as these risks cannot, in Finnalr's opinfon, be
quantifled Should the future market value of an alrcraft held on a finance lease be higher than Its agreed purchase option value, Finnair Oyj would realize a profit on Its
resale atter the end of the relevant lease perlod

Disputes and legal proceedings

Disputes concerning the approval of the financlal statements and the ownershlp of Karair oy shares referred to in the previous annval report aze still pending

The Company has lodged an appeal with the county administrative courl of Uusimaa concerning a deciston by the Helsink! district customs board with regard to excise
taxes for the 1995 tax year Proceedings have been adjourned &t the reguest of the Helsinki district customs board until the end of September 1889
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28 Principles of financlal risk management
The operations of the Finnelr Group are by natuze very international and require significant amounts of capita! Fhis mezns exposure to risks felated to exchange rates,
Interest rates, credit, liquidity and raw material prices it Is the policy of the Group to minimize the negative effect of such risks on cash positions, financlal performance
and equity
Financial risk management s concentrated In the Treasury Department of the Parent Company, which co ordinates operations in the Group and provides various
Internal banking services such as group accounts and netting services Financlal risk management s based on rlsk management policy approved by the Firnatr Board of
Directors, which beside hedging activities enables the keeping of open foreign exchange and Interes! positions within the framework of set risk iimits i kts financial
rlsk management, the Company uses & wide rangs of hedping Instruments and methods such as forefgn cutrency Ioans, forward contracts, currency and interest swaps,
forelgn exchange and Interest options and futures
Forelgn exchange rlsks
Some 75 % of Group turnover ts denominated In euros The key foreign currencles are the LIS duollar, the Swedish krona, the British pound and the Japanese yen
Approximately 25 % of the Group’s operating costs are denominated In currencies outside EMU area The maln purchasing currency is the LS dallar, which actounts for
almost hatf of all operating expenses dencminated In forefgn exchange Acqulsition of alrcraft and the spare parts for them also takes place malnly in US dollars
The Group s policy is to ellminate the Identifled forelgn exchange risk caused by 2 forelgn currency surplus or deficlt Apert from recelvables and payables and other
commercial commitments, the estimated 6 12-month cash flows denominated In foreign exchange are &s a rule Included In expesed forelgn exchange positions At the
end of the 1998/89 flnanclal year the majority of the Group's interest bearing ilabilltles were denominated in markkas
The fuel! price risk In flight operations
Varlous hedging Instruments such as forward contracts and swaps are used to manage the price risks involved in acquiring fuel for flight operations Tlme-wise, hedging
I limlted In general to less than 12 months In the 1898/99 financlal year 1uel used In filght operations accounted for 7 % of the Group's operating costs Fuel costs
are dependent on fluctuattons In ol markets and 1he US doltar
Interest risks
In order to manage interest risks, the Group's loans and Investments are dispersed Into fixed and varlable interest-rate Instruments so that most of the Group s Interest-
bearing loans have varlable Interest rates Finnalr hedges egainst interest rate changes by Investing most of Its cash reserves on the money markets tor fess than 12
months At the end of the 1998739 financlal year the average Interest on the Group's Intersst-bearing loans was 4 @ %
Credlt risks
The Geoup Is axposed to credlt risks In investing lts cash reserves and In using dedvative instruments Credlt risks are managed by making contracts within the framework
of credit risk limlis only with igading domestic end foreign banks, financlal Institutions and brokers Cash is also invasted In Interest bearlnp securities |ssued by selected
companies
Llquidity risk
The goal of the FAnnalr Group is to maintain good liquigity Liquidity ts ensured through cash reserves, account limlts, liquid money market Investments and credit limits
With respect to alrcraft acqulsitions, the Company's policy is to ensure financing at least 6 months before delivery, for example with promises of ioans The Group's liquid
funds were FIM 1 0 bltlion at the end of the 1998/88 financtal year Moreover the Parent company has folfowing unutllized standby credit facllitles
UsD 250 mill for general financlng needs,
UsD 250 miil for flnancing the acquisition of Alrbus A320 famlly
In addition the company has a domestic commerclal paper programme of EUR 100 mill

Derlvative contracts March 31, 1899, FiM Ml Nominal value Falr value
Currency derlvatives
Forward contracts g722 200
Currency options
Boupht 4289 181
Sold 1348 70
Currency swaps 654 0 188

Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate options

Boupht 3040 -83
Derlvative contracts, total 23940 43 6
Other derlvatfve contracts
Fuel price agreements tonnes 36 000 -32

29 Personnel fund
The caiterla for payment of profit bonus to the personnel fund were not met
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{ PROPOSAL CONCERNING DISPOSAL OF THE PROFIT AND STATEMENT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD |}

Proposal by the Board of Directors concerning

disposal of the profit

The Group’s distributable equity according to
the financial statements on March 31, 1999 was
FIM 1,180,880,249 10 and the Parent Company
Finnaur Oyy’s distnibutable equity was

FIM 1,126,534,875 65

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual
General Meeting that a dividend of FIM 1 50 per
share, totalling FIM 127,108, 647 be paid The rest
of the distnbutabie equity will be carned over to
retained earnings

Helsinki, 11 Juns 1999

The Board of Directore of Finnalr Oyj
Jaakko lhamuotila
Samull Haapasalo
Seppo Harkonen
Helena Terho

Harr Holkeri

Robert G Ehrnrooth

Arn Helnio

Raimo Hertto
Eva-Christina Mékslainen

Statement of the Supervisory Board

At its meeting hsld today, the Supsarvisory Board of
Finnair Oy) has examined the financial statements
of the Parent Company and of the Group and the
Auditors’ Report for the financial year Aprid 1, 1898
- March 31, 1999 The Supervisory Board has
decided to recommend that the Annual General
Meeting approve the financial statements of the
Parent Company and the Group and that the profit
shown I1n the Balance Sheet be disposed of in the
manner proposed by the Board of Directors
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The Superviscry Board states that 1ts decisions and
instructions have been followed and that 1t has
recetved the information it deems necessary from
the Company Beoard of Directors and the President
The terms of service on the Supervisory Board
of Ms Tarja Kautto, Mr Pekka Kivela, Mr Pekka
Pearttula, Ms Sirpa Pietikainen and Mr liro Viinanen
are due to expire at the Annual General Meeting
In addition Mr Jaakko Pohjola resigned from the
Supervisory Board on December 3ist 1998

Helsinki, 17 June 19989

Felix Bjorkiund
Peter Heinstrom
Pekka Kivela
Jouko K Leskinen
Mikko Pesala

Markku Hyvannen
Ritta Backas

Tarja Kautto

Markku Koskenniemi
Pekka Perttula

Sirpa Pietikéinen Virpa Puisto
Juss| Ranta Pertt) Salolainen
Aino Suhoia Raif Sund

Itro Vilnanen




{ AUDITORS REPORT ]

Auditors’ report

to the shareholders of Finnair Oy

We have examined the accounts, the financial
statements and the administration of Finnair Qyj for
the financial year April 1, 1998 to March 31, 1999
The financia!l statements prepared by the Board of
Dirgctors and the President include the review of
operations and the statements ol profit and loss,
the balance sheets and the notes to the financial
statements for the Group and the Parent Company
On the basis of our audit, we 1ssue the statement
below on the financial statements and the
administration

We have conducted the audit in accordance
with Finnish Standards on Auditing Those standards
require that we perform the audit to cbtamn
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of matenal msstatement An
audit includes examining on a test basis evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures In the
financial staiements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by
the managemsent as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement prasentation The purpose of our
audit of the admrinistration 1s to examine whether

the members of the Supervisory Board, the Board
of Directors and the President have legally compiied
with the rules of the Companies Act
In our opinion the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act and
other rutes and regulattons governing the preparation
of financial statements The financial statements give
a true and fair view, as defined in the Accounting
Act, of both the Group and the Pareni company’s
results of operations and the financial posttion The
financial statemsnts, including those of the Group,
can be adopted and the members of the Supervisory
Board and the Board of Directors and the Presidsnt
can be discharged from hability for the period audited
by us

The proposal by the Board of Directors
concerning disposal of the profit for the financial
year comphes with the Companies Act

We have examined the intenm report pubhshed
during the financial year In our opinion it was drafted
in accordance with the relevant regulations

Helsinki, 16 June 1999

Pakka Nikula Erkki Maki-Ranta
APA AA




[ FINNAIR 1994/05 - 1098/99 )

Key figures 1894/95 - 1998/99

Consolldated profit and toss statement
Turnover

- change

Cperating profit

- n relation to turnover

Profit before extraordinary ltems

- In relatien 1o tumover

Proflt before taxes

- in relation 1o turnover

Consolidated balance sheet

Fixed assels
Long-term recelvables
Inveniories

Other current assets
Total assets

Share capltal

Other equlty znd minarlty interest 2)
Liabllitles 2)

Total llablltties

Gross investment less advance payments
Gross [nvestmeni In relation to turnover
Return on equity (RDE)

Return on Investment (RO])

Increase in share caplital

Dvidend for the financlal year 3)

Earnings / share

Equity / share

Dividend / share

Dividend / earnings
ttfective dividend yledd
Equity ratlo

Met debt-to-equity {Gearlng)

interest bearing debt

Llguid funds

Net Interast hearing debt

- in relation i turnover

Ret financing fncome (+) / expanses { }

- in relation to turnover

Net interest expenses

- in selation {o turnover

Dperatlonal cash flow 4)

Operatlonal cash flow in retatlon to turnover

Average number of shares

adjusted for the shate issve

Number of shaies adjusted for the

share issue at the end of the financlal year
Number of shares corresponding to share
capitat at the end of the financlaf year

P/E ratio

Personnel on average

1994795 1985/86 1996/97 1997/98 1) 1998/99

FIM ML 6653 7186 7 403 8694 8 BBl
% 120 80 30 161 34

FIM Ml 522 624 326 608 4z7
% 78 87 44 71 48

Fita MIll 419 533 310 627 434
% 53 74 42 73 48

FIM Ml 418 533 420 630 454
% 63 74 58 73 51

FiM Mill 30937 4 043 4 D46 4118 47
FIM M 66 61 4 32 25
FIM Mill 171 188 202 236 273
FIM Ml 3 242 2 641 2 408 2752 2 367
FIM Mil 7 416 6933 6 688 7139 7396
FIM Mill 408 408 410 414 424
FIM Mill 1850 2183 2417 2 643 3018
FIM Mill 5158 4 342 3 B7i 3 683 3 854
FIM Mili 7 416 6 933 6 688 7139 T 386
FIM Mt 278 567 1055 879 1 308
% 42 79 143 102 147

% 212 154 75 67 87

% 151 T 94 158 14

FIM Mill B5 - 2 4 10
FIM Mill 41 g2 82 186 127
FIM 510 456 243 611 381
FiM 27 68 3174 34 43 39 3i 40 59

FIM 050 100 100 225 150

% 88 218 403 368 383

% 17 27 27 42 52

% 3089 g 428 465 476

% 430 253 89 -54 40

FIM Ml 3185 2253 1 602 1297 1170
FIM Mill 2214 1598 1323 1471 1032
Fid Ml 8n 655 279 -174 139
% 146 21 38 -20 16

FIM MUl -103 - -16 18 7
% 15 -13 -02 02 [

FIM M -103 -0g 17 8 34
% 16 -14 -02 D3 o4

FIM Ml B23 B16 8D5 P2 B91
% 124 114 122 1ns 100

pc 71649 571 B1 584 480 82 053 018 B2 796 483 84 739 08B

pc B1 556 420 B1 584 480 82 053 018 B2 796 483 B4 739 098

pe 81 556 420 B1 584 480 82053 018 82 706 483 B4 739 098

5 69 8 26 14 B6 883 756

9538 14105 10 633 10 706 11 264

The numbers of personnel ere averages and adjusied tor pari-time employees

1) The fipures tor flnancial year 1987/98 have been changed to be comparable with the figures tos 1988/98 financiat year

2} Due to the change in the Companies Act, the convertible subordinated bonds have been entered as a post Io equity when caiculating the key figures for 1998/89, 1897/88
and 1895/97 During previous years, (1994795 and 1985/96) financlal statements the convertible subordinaled bonds were Inctuded In liabllltles Figures for previous

years have not been changed

3} The proposal of the Board of Blrectors to the Annual General Meeting
4) The 1998/99 operattonal cash flow Includes the Impact of deferred tax llabllity and the financial years 1985/86, 1996797 and 1898/99 were restated accordngly
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[ FORMULAS FOR RATIOS ]

Formulas for ratios

Return on equity %

Return on Investment %

Eatnings / share

Equity / share

Equlty ratlo %

Net debt-to equlty (Gearing) %

Dividend / earnings %

Etfective dividend yield %

P/E Ratlo

Result betore exiraordinay ltems - taxes

Equity + minority Interests {average at the beglnning and end of the financlal year)

Result before extraordinary items + Interest and other financial expenses

Balance sheet total - non Interest bearlng Habliities (average a$ the beginning anc end of the financlal year)

Resull before extraordinary lems +/- minority holding - taxes

x 100

x 100

Average number of shares durlng the financial year, adjusted for the share issue

Equity

Number of shares at the end of the financlal year, adfusted for the share Issue

Equity + minority Interests

Batance sheet tota! - advances received

Interest bearing debt - liquid funds

Equity+ mingzliy interests

Dividend per share

Earhlngs per share

[ividend per share

AdJusted share price at the end of the financial year, adjusted for the share Issue

Final trading price al the end of the financlal year

%100

¥ 100

% 100

%100

Earnings per share

the deferred tax Fabllity caused by timing ditferences Is shown In notes to the tinanclal statements and has not been taken [nto account when calculating the key figures




[ FINNALR AIR TRANSPORT ]

Finnair air transport

1997/98 1998/89 Change %

INTERCONTINENTAL DEANITIONS FOR AIR TRANSPORT

Flight hours 17 188 17 0BG 04 '

Filght kilometres {1000) 12 553 13 598 03 e o Seaenie macsbaers

Avzliable seat kilometres, mill 4997 4 230 10 catfled, multiplied by kllometres

Revenue passenger kllometres, milt 3095 3174 28 flown*

Passenger load factor % 737 748 11 Available seat Kliometres

Avallable tonne Kiigmetres, mill B16 B34 23 Totz! number of seats avallzble,

Revenue tonne kilometres, mil 535 519 -30 multipiied by the number of Kllo-

Overalt load factor % 6586 623 -33 metres flown®

Passengers (1000) 448 465 38 Revenue tonne kilometres

Cargy (3000 kp) 34955 31733 -1 Totel fonnage of revenue load

Mzl {1000 ko) 1425 1412 -08 carried (passengers, cargo and mall),

EURDPE muttipled by kllometres flown*

Flight hours 78 538 78 042 06

Flight Kilometres {1000) 44858 44928 02 A et aclty

Avellable seat kllometres, mill 5 480 5621 26 avallable for carriage of

Revenue passenger Kilometres, milt 2 968 3169 67 passenger, carge and mall, muluplled

Passenger foad factor % 542 564 22 by number of kitometres flown

Avallable tonne Kllometres mill G87 n2 386 Passenges load factor %

Revenue tonne kilometres, mitl 305 322 54 Share of revenuae passenpger kiio-

Overall Joad factor % 445 45 3 08 metres of avallable passenger kilo

Passengers {1000) 2 644 2 786 54 metres

Cargo {1000 kg) 23198 22 098 47 Overall load factor %

Mzfl {1000 kg) 7375 8390 138 Shate of revenue tonne kilometres

DOMESTIC of availabla tonne kilometres

Flight hours 49157 51580 57 {passenger,cargo and mall)

Fllght kilometres (1000) 19 955 20 B66 46 * Kilometres flown are based on EATA

Available seat kllometres, mill 1957 2068 56 Great Clrcle distances

Revenue passenger kilometres, milt 1138 1189 45

Passenger load factor % 581 575 06

Avallable tonne kliometres, mill 220 236 70

Revenue tonne kilometres, miil 100 105 51

Overall load factor % 453 445 08B

Passengers [1000) 2 527 2631 41

Cargo {1000 kg) 491 4 389 -10 6

Mall (1000 kg) 1129 12560 107

SCHEDULED

Filght hours 144 BSG 148 108 22

Flight kllometres {1000} 78 366 79 383 13

Avgliable seat kllometres, mill 11 635 11628 25

Revenue passenger Kllometres, mi! 7 202 7532 45

Passenger load factor % 619 631 13

Avallable tonne kilometres, mill 1724 1782 33

Revenue tonne kHometres, mill 941 946 06

Overall load factor % 546 531 15

Passengers (1000} 5619 5883 47

Cargo (1000 kg} 82 262 56 220 55

Mall (1000 kg) 9929 11 053 13

LEISURE

Flight hours 3118 39 233 150

Flight kilometres {1000) 24 674 28125 145

Avallable seat kilometres, mil 5 B0G 6 056 43

Revenue passenger kilometres, mill 5218 5 466 47

Passenger Ioad tactor % ggg 803 04

Avallabie tonne kllemetres, mill 626 646 32

Revenue tonne kilometres, mill 486 502 33

Overall load factor % 777 778 01

Passengers {1000} 1447 1501 ar

Cargo (1000 kg) 4 511 3 560 2113

Mall {1000 kg} 26 36 415
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Ava]laﬁ'lé-se@i et s, ’h& :_ - *}ag’.ossf s L oibETE Y 17‘985

;Revenue;ﬁsse e lumelres millfs . - ek Sohogaz < T "1 24999
PEise Jﬁg‘éno%cm Woge T B R e T e . e85 } 323

c;AvaﬁFa e4on omelres 1ll’ A et BR N0 S v & 2] T,y Smei % .&_127429
.Dverélldna i o@% g(";f‘ Lo E > U587 a‘: . ;',f, 1 T ‘A'{ Fo Mo & iy CEAT Y

JPassengers ]ECIU “5& R "1 "y @**@431 : K4 55 967 T }iF) I%’ 16 th % 6 i By 'gﬂaagf
écarga.{wﬂn = ;—e g-‘,’,}f SR mss’ias‘ - 195’21351-553?“ 7 “h 7'!,« “331{55'« 'ﬁ P 2 va?]{!ﬁﬂ
* Mall hnumkg :“ L TR _3"_'_1“8 B0 S8 e g TR0y ¥ RIEg T F3iT080

(=]




[ SHMARES AND SHAREHOQLDERS )

Information on Finnair Oy) shares and shareholders

Shares and share capital

On March 31, 1999, the Company's paid up share
capHal, entered In the trade register, was FIM
423,895,490 and compnsed 84,739,098 shares
Each share has one vote at the Annual General
Meeting and 1ts nominal value 1s FIM 5

The minimum and maximum values of Finnair
QOy)’s share capital are FIM 300 million and FIM 1,200
million, within the limits of which the share capial
can be raised or lowered without amending the
Articles of Association The Company's shares were
converted to the book entry securities system In
June 1993

Share quotations

Finnair Oy|'s shares are quoted on the Helsinki
Exchanges Since January 1995, they have alsc been
traded in the SEAQ (Stock Exchange Automatic
Quotation) system on the London Stock Exchange

Shareholder groups as at
March 31, 1998

Payment of dividend
The Board of Directors of Finnair Oy proposes to
the Annual General Meeting that a dividend of FIM
1 50 per share, or a total of FIM 127,108,647 be
paid for the 1888/99 financial year
Government ownership
At the end of the financial year on March 31, 1999,
the Finmsh Government owned 58 4 % of the
Company's shares and votes On June 20, 1994,
Partiament decided to maintain the Govarnment's
majority holding and gave its consent t6 raduce that
holding to less than two-thirds Should all the
convertible bonds in circulation be exchanged for
Finnair Oy shares, the Government’s holding would
be 57 8 %
Convertible bonds
In February 1994, the Company's Board of Directors
1ssued a perpetual convertible subordinated bond for

Breakdown of shareholdings as at
March 31, 1999

Sheres Sharehoiders

Number ¢f strzres % -Number of shareholders % -
Public bodies -~ 57186 136 &7 ~—— a3 -
Registered In the name ol a nominee 14911997 8 —— 6 -
Financial insttutions
and insurance companies - 367197 B r—— 47 1-
Households 3 6896 263 5 —— 7957 94
Companies — §995243 2 —— 356 4 -
Associalions 307 345 —_— 48 1-
Outsida Finland — 16 287 —_— k1l -
Not canverted to the bock entry
secunties system 38 630 ——— -
Total — B4739098 00 —— B 478 100 -

Shares held Shareholders Number of ehares
1100 —_— 3776 — 183285 ——
101000 —mMmM8M8M8Mmm™ 3rep — 1 536 146
1001 10000 — BOg ——— 2272413 ——
10001 100 000 ————— 7% — 2072022
100 001 1 000 000 —_— 26 — 7187 003
1000 001 -— 56 527 602 ——
Registered w the name of a nommee —— 6 — 14 8411957
Not converled lo the book entry
securifies system —_— 38 630 —m—
Tetal 8478 — B4729 088
. ~

The following banks and brokerage frms are keown 1o have prepared eninvestment aralysis on Fisnaie Allred Berg Londen = Arps Securlties Heluink: « Chevreux de Virieu Nosdic London » Convenlum
Helsinki + Credit Swisse First Boston London = Dalwa Secunities London = Den Danska Bank Copesahagen « Deutsche Morgan Geenfell Frankfuri » Dresdner Kleinwost Benson London « Enskilda
Securities, Halsinka = Evll Securmies Helsinki = Implvaara Securities London = Meria Securlues Halsinkl « Nykredit Markets Oslo = SG Securities Loadon

Key figures and share prices

Z 1894/95 1995/96 1996/87 1987/96 1998.’99—\

Eamings / share — HM 510 4 56 24— 6N g —
Equity / shate Fi 27 6B 3174 34 43— N 40 59—
P/E ratio — 5869 8 26 14 86 ——— 883 7 56—
Humber of shares and share prices ———— — —
Number of shares adjusied lor 1ssue average — pc 71 649 571 B1 584 4B0 82 053 018 ——=——r— BZ 706 463 84 730 008 o
Number of shares adusted for 1ssue end of financeal year—  pe 81 556 420 81 584 480 82 053 018 82 796 483 B4 739 028 —-
Wumber of shares end of financial year — pE B1 556 420 B1 584 480 82 053 018~--~—— B2 706 482 B4 739 098 —
Prices adjusted lor share Issue ghesl FIM 4600 38 50 4000 56 DD 58 50 —
lowesy — FIM 2800 28 30— 3030 3400 26 40—

Market valué ol share capital March 31 FiM mil 2 365 3076 3 028 ———— 44N 2 444 —
Trading of shares — pt 14 319 356 20 B49 877 32 667 714——— 21 061 342 20 073 BI7 —
Trading as % of average number of shares % 2000 25 56 398 ——— 25 43 23 S—/




[ SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS |

FIM 230 milion on the basis of authorization received
from the Annual General Meeting of Sharsholders In
August 1993 and from an extraordinary meeting of
shargholders in November 1993 The bond in quesiion
I1s by nature a capital loan and has features
comparable to equity items Bonds can be converted
to Company shares as follows a bond with a nominal
value of FIM 10,000 entities the holder to 271 shares
in Finnawr Oy| with a nominal value of FIM 5 sach The
bonds can be converted annually between January 1
and 31 and between Apnl 1 and December 31 By
March 31, 1999, a total of FIM 195,890,000 1n bonds
had been convarted to 5,308,619 sharas Should all
the bonds shll unexchanged on March 31, 1999 be
converted to sharas, the Company's share capial
would rise by FIM 4,621,905, which corresponds to
924,381 shares

Share price development compared with
HEX-index

20 7 == Finnalr's share price, FIM ™
— HEX-Index (1/84 = Finnalf_shars_prlco) M
70 = HEX-portiolloindex (i/94 = Filnnalr share price} !
50 AN
0 Z
10 - .
1994 1995 1996 19497 1998 1999

Monthly share trade at Helsinki Exchanges
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Share ownership by management
On March 31, 1998, members of the Company's
Supervisory Board and Board of Direclors and the
Chief Executive Officer cwned 13,328 shares, which
represented 0 016 % of ali the shares and voles

Share prices and trading
Finnair Oy)’'s share was quoted at FIM 28 84 on the
Helsinki Exchanges on the last day of the financial
year The market value of the Company's shares was
FIM 2,444 million {4,471) The highest trading price
during the financial year was FIM 59 50 (56 00} and
the lowest FIM 26 40 (34 00}
A totat of 20 1 million shares (21 t} were

traded on the Helsinki Exchanges for a value of FIM

772 milhon (895) during the financial year

Largest shareholders as at March 31, 1999

- ™

Shareholder ;Number of shares ——% of sheres —
Government of Finland —— 48 510 682 58 43 -
Sampo Group 1otal . 3 228 046 3 Bl ~mn
Industnal Insurance Company Lid «—— 1100 DDO —_
0tso Loss o Pretlts Insurance Company Lid 720 602 —_—
Varma Sampo Mutuzl Pension Insurance Company —— 188 542 —_—
Sampo Lile Insurance C: 353 867 ——
Sampo Enterpuse Insurance Cempany — 250345 —— et
Sampo Insurance Company Lid 200 000 —_—
Insurance Company of Finfand Lid —— 166 550 —
Karava Mutual Insurance Company 48 000 —_
The Local Government Pensions Institution ~—— 2534000 299 —
Pension Insurance Company limarinen 2 180 600 2 59—
Keste Pension Foundation 1181 420 =———— 1 41—
Pohjota Lile Assurance Company 500 000 1 06—
Suomi Mutual Lite Assurance Company —  BBOODOO 104 —
Tapiofa Group total 759 06O 090 —
Tapiola General Mutual Insurance Company — 256300 _—
Tapiola Mutual Pension Insurance Company 221 560 —_
Tapwla Mutual Life Assurance Company — 171200 _—
Tapiola Corporate Lite Insurance Company 110 GO —
Dreacnought Finance Oy — 40060 048 —
Merita Optima Mutuat Fuad 290 000 0 34—
Patemins Oy —_ 272 200 032 —
Merita Fensta Mutzal Fund 241 BOD 028 —
Pugtimatka Rauag —-=- 205 B00 04—
ABB Pension Fuad 200 000 04—
Rausanne Oy —_— 148 900 —— 818 —
Seaman s Pension Fund 141 BDD 017 —
Merita Lile Assurance Lid — 138800 ¢i6—
Aklia Capital 125 200 015 —
Mutua! Insurance Company Pension Fennla _— 16 0S8 G4 —
Registered in the name of a | 14 911 997 7 60—
Othess —— 6241895 7 48—

Total —— B4 739088 100 00 -
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Corporate governance

Finnair 1s managed in conformity with the Finnish
Companies Act and the Articles of Association of
the Corporation The administrative bodies of the
Corporation are the Supervisory Beard, the Board
of Directors and the President The annual stock-
holders’ meeting holds ultimate authornty within the
Corporation 1t 1s the primary duty of the stockholders’
meeting to pass resolutions on the profit and loss
account and the distribution of the dividend, to elect
members {c the Supervisory Board of the Corporation
and the auditors and their deputtes, and to resolve
on any increase or decrease 1n share capital and on

any changes to the Articles of Association
THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board shall consist of at least 12
and not more'than 18 members Members of the
Supervisory Board shall be elected by the Annual

General Meeting of the Corpgration for periods of

Beoard of Management

\\
b
!

i

/
-

KELJ0 SUILR, b. 1845, BSc (Econ), President and
CED, emp!. since 1993,

smplsince 1976,

MAURI ANNALA, b. 1945 MSc {Econ), EVF,
Accounting, Subsidiaries, Finnair Calsring,

three years at a time Election must take into account
the distribution of the Corporation’s stock holdings
One third of the members of the Supervisory Board
shall resign every year The Supervisory Board shall
elect one of its members as 1ts Chairman and one
as Deputy Chairman

It 1s the duty of the Superviscry Board to see
that the affairs of the Corporation are managed in
accordance with sound business principles and with
due attention to profitability, and in conformity with
the provisions of the Articles of Association and the
resclutions of the stockholders’ meetings The
Supervisory Board shall determine within the limits
specified in the articles of Association the number
of members of the Board of Directors and shall elect
the Chairman and members of that Board, and
determine their remuneration The Supervisory Board
shall appeint and dismiss the President and

determine his or her salary

HENRIK ABLE, b. 1848, LL.M, EVM, CFO,
Finanging, international Retations, inlormation
Management, emp!. since 1979,
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The Supervisory Board shall submit a statement to
the Annual General Meeting concerming the final profit
and loss account and auditors' report tor the parent
company and the Group, and shall convene the
stockholders’ meeting The stockhelders' meeting
shall determine the remuneration for the members of
the Supervisory Board The Superviscry Board

convened five times duning the last financial year

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of a Chairman and at
teast four but not more than eight members The
Supervisory Board shall elect the chairman and members
of the Board of Directors before the end of March for
a term of three years at a ttme The Board of Directors
shall elect one of 1s members as vice-chairman

The Board of Directors shall carry responsibibty
as defined in the Companias Act for managing the

coperations and finances of the Corporation Itis the

Zwtr

K
L
z
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¥

JORMA ELORANTA, b.1947, capiain, EVP,
Ogperations Division, entpl, since 1972,

JOUKD MALEH, b 1840, MSc {Aerenauticat Eng),
EVP, Tachnical Thiviston, empl. since 1971,

duty of the Board of Directors to prepare those
matters to be dealt with at the meetings of the
stockholders and the Supervisory Board, and to
ensure thai the resolutions of the stockholders
meetings and the Supervisory Board are carned out
It s also the duty of the Board of Directors to appoint
and dismiss those executive officers of the
Corporation whose appointment and dismissal has
not been assigned to the Supervisory Board, and
shall also determine their remuneration

The Board of Directors shall be responsible
for ensuring the appropnate supervision of the
accounts and managemant of the financial resources
of the Corporation The Board of Directors 1s also
responsible for ensuring that the final accounts for
the Corporation contain sufficient and accurate
information The Board of Directors shall confer and

rescind rights to sign on behal!f of the Corporation

JUHAN! SUDMELA, b 1848, Secondzry School
Graduate, EVP, Human Resources and Service
Duatity. empl. since 1874,
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The Board of Directors convenes once a month, on
avarage, during the year The total sum of salanes,
bonuses and fringe beanefits paid to the Board of
Directors and the President during the 1998/99

financial year amounted to FIM 3 04 million

PRESIDENT AND
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Under the Articles of Association 1t 15 the duty of the
President to manage the Corporation and attend to its
day-to-day administration The Presidant shall make
sure that the resolutions of the stockholders meetings,
the Supervisory Board and Board of Directors are
carned out The President 1s the chairman of the Board
of Management Members of the Board of Management
are selected from among the senior management of
the Corporation Representatives of the staff are also
invited to meetings of the Board of Management It s
the duty of the members of the Board of Management
1o promete the interests of their own areas of
responsibility and to report to the President

Mr Keyjo Swila has been the President of
Finnarr Oy) since the beginning of 1999

As of August 1, 1999 responsibibties at Finnair's
Marketing were divided between two Senior Vice
Presidents Eero Ahola will be responsible for commercial
planning, traffic planning, brand/service concepts,
commaercial autemation, frequent traveller programmes,
alhance cooperation in marketing and ground services

Mika Perho will be responsible for sales in Finland
and abroad as well as marketing communications Both

persons will be members of the Board of Management

[:2°}

AUDITORS
AUDITORS PROPER
SVH PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy, APA Pekka Nikula
AA Erkkl Maki-Ranta

DEPUTY AUDITORS
SVH PricewaterhouseCoopers Qy, APA Tauno Haataja
APA Jorma Helkkinen

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Markku Hyvarinen, Chairrman, Deputy Managing
Director, Varma-Sampo

Felix Bjorklund, Deputy Chairrman

Rutta Backas, MSc {(Econ }, Liaketeolisuus ry
{Pharmaceautical Indusiry)

Peter Heinstrom, Party Secretary, The Swedish Pecple s Party

Tarja Kautto, Member of Parliament

Pekka Kivela, MSc (Econ )

Markku Koskenniemi,Managing Director, Tammerneon Oy

Jouko K Leskinen, Praesident & CEQ, Sampo Group

Pekka Perttula, Secretary General, Centrs Party of Fintand

Mikko Pesald, Member of European Parllament

Sirpa Pietikainen, Member of Parhlament

Virpa Puisto, Member of Parhament

Jussi Ranta, Member of Parhament

Perttt Salolainen, Ambassador, Embassy of Finland in London

Aino Suhola, journalist

Ralf Sund, Secretary General, The Left-wing Aillance

liro Viinanen, President, Pohjola Group Insurance Corperation

Personnel rgpresentatives

Henry Johansson, Arto Yii-Pantt, Juham Siusale, Mana Vaitti




Board of Directors

HARRI HOLKERL, b. 1937, MSc (Poll, Counselior
ol State, Chairman of the &oard of Directors,
Member oi the Board ol the Bank of Finland 1978-
1987, Chaiman of the Koard of Helsinki Telephone
Company Ltd, Member of the Board of Directors
ol Finnair ssace 1997,

-

\

2

SAMULI HAAPASALD, b. 1952, LL.M, counselior
al the Minisiry of iransport and Communications;
head ol steering commitige on business
ownership, Member of the ¥oard of Directors of
Finnair since 1999

‘.;"t

SEPPO HARKGNEN, b 1948, MSc {Fol). President
of the Finnish Foreign Trade Associatien, Chairman
of the Beard of Talentum Oyj, Member of the
Board o! Directors of Finnair since 1924

JAAKKD THAMUDTILA, b. 1839, MSc (Eng),
Mining Counsellor, Depuly Chairman ¢f the Board
ol Directors, Executive Director and Member of
the Board of Fortum Corporation, Chairman ol
the Board of Asko Oy, Member of the Supervisory
Reard of Pohjcta Group tnsurance Corperatlion,
Member of the Supervisory Board of Merita Bank
Li¢, Member of the Board of Directors of Finnair
since 1988,

ARIHE{NIO, b 1945, 1L M., Managing Director
and Member of the Board of Directors of
Stockmann plc, Member of the Sepervisory Board
of Alma Media Oyj and Merita Bank Ltd, Member
of the Board ol Metsa Tissue Corporation and
Sampo Insurznce Company, Mamber of the Board
ol Directors of Finnair since 1994

EVA-CHRISTINA MAKELAINEN, b 1835, DrPhil_,
Ambassados 10 Greece (1920-85) and to Deamark
{1985-90), Director Gereral ol 1he *rotocol Depart-
ment of the Ministry for Foreagn Affairs, Ambassa-
¢0r t0 Austria and Slavenia, simultaneously
Permanent Representative 1o the United Hetions
Organizations an Vienna (1985-98), Member of the
Board of Directors 6! Finnair since 1994

ROBERT [ EARNROOTH, b 1939, LisSciEcon),
Chairman of the Board of Metra Corposation,

Member o the Koard of Fiskars Oyj Abp, Member
ot the Board of Directars of Finnair since 1992,

RAIMD HERTTQ, b 1838, MSc {Econ),
Gommerpal Counsellor, Managing Dircector of
Rautakirja Oy 1987. 1998, Member of 1he Board
of Onniren Oy, Member of the Board af Directors
of Finnalr since 1994

HELENA TERHD, b 1948, MSc {Eng), eMBA,
Semor Vice President, Ouality, Kone Corporaiaon,
BMember of ihe Board of Hational Emergency
Supply Agency, Member of the Board of Direttors
of Finna:r since 19497
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Finnair Oy) head office

Norvista offices

Helsinki-Vantaa Airport

Tetotie 11 A

PO Box 15 01053 FINNAIR Finland
tel +3589 &1 881 fax +358 § 818 4401

Internet www finnarr com

Finnair Oy) affilates

Corporzte Communcabons, invastor Relatons
Usko Maitta Director

tel +358 98182970 [ax +358 B 818 4098
Patn Pantti Vice President

tel +358 9818 4850, tax +358 § 818 4002

Amadeus Finland Oy
Eteldesplanad) 18 A
PO Box 278 00101 Halsinki Finland

tel +358 0 6166709 fax +358 & 490 427

AREA Travel Agency Ltd
Parvaninnankalu 1
PO Box & 00251 Helsinki Finland

tel +358 9 818 383 fax +358 0 618 3245

Oy Aurinkamatkat -Suntours Ltd Ab
Pohjoinen Rautatienkaty 25
P Q Box 287 00101 Helsink) Finland

el +358 9 12331 fax +358 8 818 7008

Finnar Gateway Ravintolat Oy
Halsinki Vantaa Airport
01530 Vantaa Finland

tel +3586 8183606 fax +358 0 818 3609

Finland Travel Bureau Ltd
Karvokatu 10 A
PO Box 318 00101 Helsinki Finland

tet +3589 18 261 fax +3588 8121547

Finnar Travel Services Oy
Pohjoinen Rautatiekatlu 25
PQ Box 275 00101 Helsinki Finland

tel +358 9818 767 fax +358 98187818

Finncatering Oy
Valimokuja 2
PO Box 38 01511 Vaniaa Finland

tel +358 88700 250 fax +358 § B7002515

Oy Finnmatkat - Finntours Ab
Pohjoinen Rautaligkatu 25
PO Box 840 001C1 Helsinki Finland

tel + 358 9 175 344 fax + 3569 6187280

Kuopion Matkatoimsio Oy
Maljalahdankatu 35
76110 Kuepio Finland

tel +358 17 2656100 fax 4358 17 265 G101

Malmilonto Oy
Tietotie 11 A
01530 Vaniaa Finland

Tel +358 8 818 87 fax +358 9 B18 6803

Mikkelin Matkatoimisto Qy
Porrassatmenkatu 23
50100 Mikkeli Finland

tel +358 15321 100 fax +358 15321 1010

Varkauden Matkatoimusto Oy
Ahlstréminkatu 8
78250 Varkaus Fintang

el +358 17 551 0511 fax +358 17 551 0555

Ponting house  £dia Ltd o ‘_.,@m.,,%"
Repro Latvala Dy é?/ 1
Copy CARTA Corporals Advisors § ///'.‘f.
Layout SEK & GREY ",,,
Phetographs Marno Takkari I
Juha-Pakka Lagklo g,
i, bkt
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AMSTERDAM, Norvisia BV

World Trade Center Schuphol BLVD 185
1118 BG Schiphol Awrport

tel +31 20 316 4023

tax +31 20 316 4030

DUBLIN Norvisia
11 Parhamanst Streat 1st floor
Bubhin 2

tel +353 1 844 6565

fax 4353 1 Ba4 6557

FRANKFURT, Norvista Reisen GmbH
Karistrasse 12

D 60329 Frenkfurt/M

tel +49 G9 24 29 7730

fax +49 69 24 29 7790

LONDON Norwsta
22¢ Regenl Street
London W1R BPD

tel +44 171 4089 7333

fax +44 171 409 0553 or 408 0932

MILAN, Norvista Srl

Via Larga 2

1 20122 Mitan

tel +39 2 8801 0294 95

fax +39 2 8501 0297

MOSCOW, ZAO Norvista
Myasnitskaya 35

10100 Moscow

tel +7 D95 204 1630

fax +7 095 204 1380

NEW YORK, Morvisia Inc
228 Easi 45th Street
New York NY 10017
tel +1 2128181198

fax +1 212 818 0585

PARIS, Norvista

18 Rue de Choiseul
F-75002 Pans

tal +33 1 49 24 0597

fax +33 1 40 17 0500

RIGA, Narvista

Kr Barona 13/15 Astrides House
Riga

18l +3717 217617

fax 43717 287977

STOCKHOLM Norvista Travel AB
Box 38 183 {Fatburs kvarngatan 1G)
SE 100 84 Stockholm

tal +46 8 720 3330

fax +46 8 720 4082

STPETERSBURG ZAO Norvista
Ul Kazangkaya 44

180031 St Petersburg

lel +7 812 326 1850 1856 1857

fax 47 812 326 1358

TALLINN Estravel AS
BOX 3727 (Suur Karja 15)
EE ¢080 Tallinn

18l +372 £ 266 200

fax +372 & 266 202

TORONTO Normwvista Lid

20 York Mills Road Suite 402
Joronio North York ONT M2P2C2
tel +1 416222 0740

fax +1 416 222 5004

VILNIUS Norvista
2 Gediminas Stres!
LT 2000 Vilnius

tal +370 2 225 803

fax +370 2 225 610
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IiInformation

to shareholders

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting of Finnair Oy} will convene on August
Hotel Inter-Continental Helsinki, Mannerhetmintie 46-48, Helsinki

Shareholders desiring to attend must be registered with the

25,1999 at 3 00 p m n the

Finmish Central Securities

Depository Lid (APK} by August 20, 1999 Shareholders whose shares have not been transferred

to the book-entry securiies system may also attend the AGM on condition that such shareholders

were registered in the Company s shareholder register before 11 J

une, 1993 In such a case

sharseholders must ai the AGM present their share certificates or cther evidence that ther

shareholding rights have not been iransferred to the book-entry system

Shareholders wishing to attend the AGM must notify the Company by 23 August, 1999

DIVIDEND PROPOSAL

The Board of Directors of Finnair Oy} proposes to the Annual General Meeting that shareholders

be paid a dividend for the 1898/99 financial year of FIM 1 50 per share The Board of Directors

proposes that the diwdend be paid on September 6, 1999 o those shareholders who were !

registered on the record on August 30, 1898

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in addition to this Annual Report three interim reporis will be pubh

shed dunng the financial year

April 1, 1999 - March 31, 2000 one covering the first three months of the financial year during

week 34, one covering the first six months during week 47 and one
during week 8 i February, 2000

The Annual report and the Interim reports are available in Fi

covering the first nine months

nmish and English and can be

ordered from Finnairr s head office, tel + 358 9 B18 49571 fax + 358 89 818 4092 or internet,

www finnatr com
ADDRESSES

For further information about Finnair Group, please contact

Finnair Head Office Corporate Communications
Tretotte 11 A, 01053 FINNAIR Usko Maatia, Director

te! + 358 {9) 818 81 tel +358 (9) B18 4970

Mail address fax +358 {9) B18 4098
Finnair

PO Box 15

01053, Finnair Finland

Investor Relations

Petn Pentti, Vice President
tel +358 (9) 818 4950

fax +358 {(9) 818 4092

Internet
http //www linnair com




